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ENV-2020-289-CE
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Council District: 14 — Huizar
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Area Planning Commission: Central

Neighborhood Council: Downtown Los Angeles

Legal Description: Rivara and Vignolo Tract, Block
C, Lots 10 and 11 and the NW 40-
feet of Lots 8 and 9

2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles
Emergency Authority re: Tolling of Deadlines
Prescribed in the Municipal Code and April 17,
2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles
Emergency Authority re: Tolling HCIDLA
Deadlines and Revising Expiration of Emergency

Orders

PROJECT: Historic-Cultural Monument Application for the
KING EDWARD HOTEL

REQUEST: Declare the property a Historic-Cultural Monument

Liza Bereton

c/o AIDS Healthcare Foundation
6225 Sunset Boulevard, 215 Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90028

OWNERS/APPLICANTS:

AOF Bristol 423, LLC et al.

c/o Capital Foresight/Accounting Department
2980 Beverly Glen Circle, Suite 300

Bel Air, CA 90077

PREPARERS: Kate Eggert and Krisy Gosney

GEHPC

6444 Kraft Avenue

North Hollywood, CA 91606
RECOMMENDATION That the Cultural Heritage Commission:

1. Declare the subject property an Historic-Cultural Monument per Los Angeles
Administrative Code Chapter 9, Division 22, Article 1, Section 22.171.7.

2. Adopt the staff report and findings.

VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP
Director of Planning

[SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE] [SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE]

Lambert M. Giessinger, Preservation Architect
Office of Historic Resources

Ken Bernstein, AICP, Manager
Office of Historic Resources
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Office of Historic Resources

Attachments: Historic-Cultural Monument Application
Commission/Staff Site Inspection Photos—February 13, 2020
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FINDINGS

e The King Edward Hotel “exemplifies significant contributions to the broad cultural,
economic or social history of the nation, state, city or community” for its association with
the early 20" century development of hotels in Downtown Los Angeles, and as the home
of the King Eddy Saloon, a business important to the commercial identity of Downtown
Los Angeles that has continuously operated at the property since the 1930s.

e The King Edward Hotel “embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period,
or method of construction” and “represents a notable work of a master designer, builder,
or architect whose individual genius influenced his or her age” as an excellent example of
a commercial building in the Beaux Arts architectural style, and as a significant work of
master architect John Parkinson.

CRITERIA

The criterion is the Cultural Heritage Ordinance which defines a historical or cultural monument
as any site (including significant trees or other plant life located thereon), building or structure of
particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles if it meets at least one of the
following criteria:

1. Is identified with important events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies
significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation,
state, city or community;

2. Is associated with the lives of historic personages important to national, state, city, or local
history; or

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of construction;
or represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or architect whose individual
genius influenced his or her age.

SUMMARY

The King Edward Hotel is a six-story commercial building located at the northwest corner of South
Los Angeles Street and East Fifth Street in Downtown Los Angeles. Constructed in 1905, the
subject property was designed in the Beaux Arts architectural style by Los Angeles master
architects John Parkinson (1861-1935) and Edwin Bergstrom. The subject property was one of
the earliest hotels constructed in what would become the hotel district in Downtown Los Angeles
in the early 20" century. It is also the longtime location of the King Eddy Saloon, a neighborhood
bar that has been in continuous operation at the site, under different variations of the name, since
1933.

After 1895, downtown Los Angeles hotel construction was inspired by two passenger rail depots
that served transcontinental routes. During this time, the migration west to California was mainly
for seasonal jobs and employment in the soon-to-be bourgeoning automobile manufacturing
industry and film industry. After 1895, in response to the increasing number of rail travelers, the
downtown hotel became larger and taller and took on a luxuriousness that either catered to
businessmen or served as a respectable family hostelry. New construction technology allowed
for taller buildings with the use of steel and concrete or terra cotta and hollow tile framing instead
of wood framing. After the construction of the King Edward and Alexandria Hotels, several more
hotels joined the area, including the Baltimore, Rosslyn, and Cecil. These hotels played a
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fundamental role in the way tourists envisioned and experienced Los Angeles in the early 20"
century.

L-shaped in plan, the subject property is of steel frame and brick construction with a flat roof. The
building features a tripartite facade with the base, shaft, and cap separated by dentilled and egg-
and-dart stringcourses and a projecting dentilled cornice corbeled out on dentil and egg-and-dart
moldings. The primary, south-facing elevation fronts East Fifth Street and is eight bays wide with
double-height storefronts on the ground floor. The lobby entrance is located in the third
westernmost bay and consists of metal double doors with a metal canopy. The east-facing
elevation fronts South Los Angeles Street and is four bays wide. Fenestration consists of mostly
double-hung wood windows, double-hung vinyl windows, multi-lite storefronts, and multi-lite
transom windows with a center hopper window. The interior of the hotel features a double-height
lobby with a mosaic tile floor and marble columns, crown molding, marble wainscoting, and one
of the original wooden elevators with brass doors. There is a large room under 129-131 East Fifth
Street that contains remnants of a stage, kitchen, and murals on the ceiling and walls.

Born in Scorton, England in 1861, John Parkinson apprenticed in construction while studying
engineering and drafting at night school. He immigrated to the United States in 1891 and relocated
to Los Angeles by 1894. In 1905, Parkinson started an architectural firm with Edwin Bergstrom.
By 1906, Parkinson alone had already designed over a hundred office buildings, hotels, banks,
residences, and club houses in Los Angeles. In 1915, after ten years of partnership, Parkinson
and Bergstrom went their separate ways. In 1920, he partnered with his son Donald Parkinson to
form Parkinson & Parkinson. Some of Parkinson’s well-known works in the Los Angeles area
include Grand Central Market (1898, HCM #1183), the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum (1921),
Los Angeles City Hall (1928, HCM #150), and Union Station (1939, HCM #101). Parkinson died
in Los Angeles in 1935.

The subject property has undergone several alterations over the years that include the addition
of an iron and stained glass marquise in 1914; the replacement of plate glass windows with metal
gates at 131 East Fifth Street in 1923; the addition of a mezzanine in the lobby in 1925; the cutting
of the cornice for a fire escape ladder in 1955; the infill of some storefront windows in 1959;
installation of a new storefront in 1960; the replacement of some ground floor masonry elements
with metal decking in 1972; the installation of two projecting signs for the King Eddy in 2013; and
the replacement of some windows and alterations to storefront windows and entrances at
unknown dates.

The subject property was determined eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places
in 2009 and was listed on the California Register of Historical Resources as a Contributor to the
Fifth Street-Main Street Commercial Historic District. In addition, SurveyLA, the citywide historic
resources survey, identified the subject property as individually eligible for listing under the
national, state, and local designation programs as an excellent example of Beaux Arts commercial
architecture in Downtown Los Angeles, as a work of noted Los Angeles architects Parkinson and
Bergstrom, as an excellent example of an early 20th century hotel in Downtown Los Angeles, and
as the long-term location of the King Eddy Saloon, a business important to the commercial identity
and prohibition history of Downtown Los Angeles.

DISCUSSION

The King Edward Hotel meets two of the Historic-Cultural Monument criteria: it “exemplifies
significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation, state, city
or community” for its association with the early 20" century development of hotels in Downtown
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Los Angeles, and as the home of the King Eddy Saloon, a business important to the commercial
identity of Downtown Los Angeles that has continuously operated at the property since the 1930s;
and it “embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of construction”
and “represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or architect whose individual genius
influenced his or her age” as an excellent example of a commercial building in the Beaux Arts
architectural style, and a significant work of master architect John Parkinson.

The presence of transcontinental rail depots, high demand for seasonal labor, and growing
migration and tourism prompted the construction of numerous hotels in the eastern portion of
Downtown Los Angeles in the early 20" century. Unlike earlier lodging types, these hotels were
typically larger and more luxurious, utilizing new construction techniques and amenities like
electricity, elevators, and steam heating. The King Edward Hotel was built as part of this hotel
boom; located near 6" Street and Main Street, where the Pacific Electric Railway had established
a new terminal and headquarters in 1905, it marked the expansion of the city’s central business
district into what had previously been an industrial area. During the 1920s and 30s, affluent
travelers increasingly looked to newer hotels located elsewhere in the city, and the many hotels
in the eastern portion of Downtown, including the King Edward, were largely converted to single-
room occupancy housing.

The King Eddy Saloon, located on the ground floor of the King Edward Hotel, has been in
operation under various names since 1933. The space originally housed a bar, which closed in
1918 as California moved to restrict sale and consumption of alcohol. In 1921, after the beginning
of Prohibition at the federal level, former saloon operators Ernest Vierke and A.M. Miller opened
what was ostensibly a soda fountain in the space. However, the infilled windows and decorated
cellar with a stage suggest that it was a front for a speakeasy. The business received an alcohol
license in 1933, when Prohibition was repealed. Since then, the King Eddy Saloon has been an
important fixture in the social life of Downtown and Skid Row, attracting a regular clientele that
has included authors John Fante and Charles Bukowski, as well as many residents of the
surrounding area.

The King Edward Hotel reflects the dominance of Beaux Arts architecture in Downtown Los
Angeles in the late 19™ and early 20™ centuries, when it served as a marker of the growing city’s
prosperity. The property’s symmetrical composition, tripartite form, prominent cornice with dentils
and molding, and interior columns all reflect the style as applied to a multistory commercial
building. While the property has experienced some alterations, particularly on the interior, it
maintains a high degree of integrity overall.

John Parkinson (1861-1935) was a prolific master architect who was instrumental in shaping the
built environment of Downtown Los Angeles in the early 20th century and created some of the
city’'s most iconic commercial, civic, and institutional buildings. Within Parkinson’s body of work,
the King Edward Hotel is significant as being among his initial experiments in developing
economical, fireproof construction methods. Instead of framing the entire building with iron and
steel as he employed in previous projects such as Grand Central Market, in designing the King
Edward Hotel, he utilized hollow, semi-porous tile partitions to form the supports for the floors and
walls above the first floor. In addition, the King Edward Hotel is unique in that it was designed by
Parkinson as a business venture for himself; it remained in his family’s name until 1962.

Despite interior and exterior alterations, the subject property is largely intact and retains a high
level of integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association to
convey its significance.
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CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (*CEQA”) FINDINGS

State of California CEQA Guidelines, Article 19, Section 15308, Class 8 “consists of actions taken
by regulatory agencies, as authorized by state or local ordinance, to assure the maintenance,
restoration, enhancement, or protection of the environment where the regulatory process involves
procedures for protection of the environment.”

State of California CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15331, Class 31 “consists of projects
limited to maintenance, repair, stabilization, rehabilitation, restoration, preservation, conservation
or reconstruction of historical resources in a manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating,
Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic buildings.”

The designation of the King Edward Hotel as an Historic-Cultural Monument in accordance with
Chapter 9, Article 1, of The City of Los Angeles Administrative Code (“LAAC") will ensure that
future construction activities involving the subject property are regulated in accordance with
Section 22.171.14 of the LAAC. The purpose of the designation is to prevent significant impacts
to a Historic-Cultural Monument through the application of the standards set forth in the LAAC.
Without the regulation imposed by way of the pending designation, the historic significance and
integrity of the subject property could be lost through incompatible alterations and new
construction and the demolition of an irreplaceable historic site/open space. The Secretary of the
Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation are expressly incorporated into the LAAC and provide
standards concerning the historically appropriate construction activities which will ensure the
continued preservation of the subject property.

The City of Los Angeles has determined based on the whole of the administrative record, that
substantial evidence supports that the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines Section Article 19, Section 15308, Class 8 and Class 31, and none of the exceptions
to a categorical exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 applies. The project
was found to be exempt based on the following:

The use of Categorical Exemption Class 8 in connection with the proposed
designation is consistent with the goals of maintaining, restoring, enhancing, and
protecting the environment through the imposition of regulations designed to
prevent the degradation of Historic-Cultural Monuments.

The use of Categorical Exemption Class 31 in connection with the proposed
designation is consistent with the goals relating to the preservation, rehabilitation,
restoration and reconstruction of historic buildings and sites in a manner consistent
with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic
Properties.

Categorical Exemption ENV-2020-289-CE was prepared on February 14, 2020.

BACKGROUND

On January 14, 2020, the Director of Planning determined that the application for the proposed
designation of the subject property as Historic-Cultural Monument was complete. On February 6,
2020, the Cultural Heritage Commission voted to take the property under consideration. On
February 13, 2020, a subcommittee of the Commission consisting of Commissioners Barron and
Milofsky visited the property, accompanied by staff from the Office of Historic Resources. In
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accordance with Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 22.171.10, on March 17, 2020, the
owner requested up to a 60-day extension to the time for the Commission to act. The original
expiration date of June 20, 2020 is tolled, and a revised date will be determined pursuant to the
Mayor’s March 21, 2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles Emergency Authority re: Tolling
of Deadlines Prescribed in the Municipal Code and April 17, 2020 Public Order Under City of Los
Angeles Emergency Authority re: Tolling HCIDLA Deadlines and Revising Expiration of
Emergency Orders.
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SUMMARY

The King Edward Hotel is a six-story commercial building located at the northwest corner of
South Los Angeles Street and East Fifth Street in Downtown Los Angeles. Constructed in 1905,
the subject property was designed in the Beaux Arts architectural style by Los Angeles master
architects John Parkinson (1861-1935) and Edwin Bergstrom. The subject property was one of
the earliest hotels constructed in what would become the hotel district in Downtown Los Angeles
in the early 20" century. It is also the longtime location of the King Eddy Saloon, a
neighborhood bar that has been in continuous operation at the site, under different variations of
the name, since 1933.

After 1895, downtown Los Angeles hotel construction was inspired by two passenger rail depots
that served transcontinental routes. During this time, the migration west to California was mainly
for seasonal jobs and employment in the soon-to-be bourgeoning automobile manufacturing
industry and film industry. After 1895, in response to the increasing amount of rail travelers, the
downtown hotel became larger and taller and took on a luxuriousness that either catered to
businessmen or served as a respectable family hostelry. New construction technology allowed
for taller buildings with the use of steel and concrete or terra cotta and hollow tile framing
instead of wood framing. After the construction of the King Edward and Alexandria Hotels,
several more hotels joined the area, including the Baltimore, Rosslyn, and Cecil. These hotels
played a fundamental role in the way tourists envisioned and experienced Los Angeles in the
early 20" century.

L-shaped in plan, the subject property is of steel frame and brick construction with a flat roof.
The building features a tripartite facade with the base, shaft, and cap separated by dentilled and
egg-and-dart stringcourses and a projecting dentilled cornice corbeled out on dentil and egg-
and-dart moldings. The primary, south-facing elevation fronts East Fifth Street and is eight bays
wide with double-height storefronts on the ground floor. The lobby entrance is located in the
third westernmost bay and consists of metal double doors with a metal canopy. The east-facing
elevation fronts South Los Angeles Street and is four bays wide. Fenestration consists of mostly
double-hung wood windows, double-hung vinyl windows, multi-lite storefronts, and multi-lite
transom windows with a center hopper window. The interior of the hotel features a double-
height lobby with a mosaic tile floor and marble columns, crown molding, marble wainscoting,
and one of the original wooden elevators with brass doors. There is a large room under 129-131
East Fifth Street that contains remnants of a stage, kitchen, and murals on the ceiling and walls.

Born in Scorton, England in 1861, John Parkinson apprenticed in construction while studying
engineering and drafting at night school. He immigrated to the United States in 1891 and
relocated to Los Angeles by 1894. In 1905, Parkinson started an architectural firm with Edwin
Bergstrom. By 1906, Parkinson alone had already designed over a hundred office buildings,
hotels, banks, residences, and club houses in Los Angeles. In 1915, after ten years of
partnership, Parkinson and Bergstrom went their separate ways. In 1920, he partnered with his
son Donald Parkinson to form Parkinson & Parkinson. Some of Parkinson’s well-known works in
the Los Angeles area include Grand Central Market (1898, HCM #1183), the Los Angeles
Memorial Coliseum (1921), Los Angeles City Hall (1928, HCM #150), and Union Station (1939,
HCM #101). Parkinson died in Los Angeles in 1935.

The subject property has undergone several alterations over the years that include the addition
of iron and stained glass marquise in 1914; the replacement of plate glass windows with metal
gates at 131 East Fifth Street in 1923; the addition of a mezzanine in the lobby in 1925; the
cutting of the cornice for a fire escape ladder in 1955; the infill of some storefront windows in
1959; installation of a new storefront in 1960; the replacement of some ground floor masonry



CHC-2020-288-HCM
117-131 East 5th Street; 455 South Los Angeles Street
Page 3 of 3

elements with metal decking in 1972; the installation of two projecting signs for the King Eddy in
2013; and the replacement of some windows and alterations to storefront windows and
entrances at unknown dates.

The subject property was determined eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic
Places and is listed on the California Register of Historical Resources as a Contributor to the
Fifth Street-Main Street Commercial Historic District. In addition, SurveyLA, the citywide historic
resources survey, identified the subject property as individually eligible for listing under the
national, state, and local designation programs as an excellent example of Beaux Arts
commercial architecture in Downtown Los Angeles, as a work of noted Los Angeles architects
Parkinson and Bergstrom, as an excellent example of an early 20th century hotel in Downtown
Los Angeles, and as the long-term location of the King Eddy Saloon, a business important to the
commercial identity and prohibition history of Downtown Los Angeles.

CRITERIA

The criterion is the Cultural Heritage Ordinance which defines a historical or cultural monument
as any site (including significant trees or other plant life located thereon), building or structure of
particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles if it meets at least one of the
following criteria:

1. Is identified with important events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies
significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation,
state, city or community;

2. Is associated with the lives of historic personages important to national, state, city, or
local history; or

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of
construction; or represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or architect
whose individual genius influenced his or her age.

FINDINGS

Based on the facts set forth in the summary and application, the Commission determines that
the application is complete and that the property may be significant enough to warrant further
investigation as a potential Historic-Cultural Monument.















7A. Written Statement — Proposed Monument Description

Located at the northwest corner of S. Los Angeles Street and E. Fifth Street in downtown Los
Angeles, the King Edward Hotel is a Beaux Arts style commercial building constructed in 1905.
It is located within the southern boundary of the Fifth Street-Main Street Commercial Historic
District, of which it is a contributor. The district is determined eligible for the National Register
of Historic Places and is currently listed on the California Register of Historic Places. The
building’s alley-facing (west) elevation is on the historically significant Werdin Place, also
known as Indian Alley. This L-shaped building has a steel beam and structural clay tile
construction and is clad in tan-colored, unglazed brick. The building is six stories in height, plus
basement, with a heavy projected cornice with oversized, block dentil brackets and a frieze of
protruding brick dentil, and egg-and-dart stone molding. The roof is low sloped, containing
several ventilation turrets, an elevator, and stair bulkhead. All materials were said to be sourced
in Los Angeles.!

South Elevation

There are two street-facing elevations. The E. Fifth Street (south) elevation is five bays wide.
The bays are arranged in an alternating two window, three window sequence with a vertical,
protruding, brick pattern between each bay creating the impression of pilasters. Most of the
original, wooden, double-hung, one-over-one windows remain. Historically, the ground floor —
hotel lobby, restaurant, and dining room — occupied the first three westernmost bays; the other
two bays were occupied by three small retail shops. Between 1921 and 1923, the hotel restaurant
and dining room were sectioned off and turned into two small retail spaces.

The lobby entrance is located in the middle of the second westernmost bay. The 1914 iron and
stained-glass canopy hangs over the recessed entrance; above it is an ornate crosshead with
corbels. Both entrance doors are glass over one panel, metal clad, oversized double doors; there
is a large, single-pane transom window. The retail storefronts have been altered over the years.
The hotel lobby retains its original plate glass windows and prismatic glass tile transoms. The
easternmost two storefronts retain their original prismatic glass tile transoms. Most of the
remaining prismatic glass tile transoms have a small horizontal pivot window.

In 1972, the ground floor exterior brick masonry was covered with a metal skin, likely cast iron,
with ornamental elements, including spandrel beam, rope molding, and recessed panel piers and
bulkheads. On the bottom of the pier of the westernmost bay, there is a cornerstone reading —
JOHN PARKINSON ARCHITECT. The small neighborhood bar called the “King Eddy Saloon”
occupies part of the forth and all of the fifth bays; its main entrance is recessed with a metal
awning and there is an entrance to a very small bottle shop with a commercial glass door and a
security door with a heavy galvanized metal screen.

On the second, third, and six floors, there is a stringcourse of brick molding. Recessed brick lines
create the impression of radiating flat arches over the windows of the second story. On the
second and sixth stories, some horizontal brick layers are recessed creating the impression of

1 Los Angeles Times, “The King Edward Hotel,” \/24.
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large lighter-colored bands cut by thinner dark ones. On the mezzanine level, (roughly in the
middle of the elevation) KING EDWARD HOTEL is spelled out in large raised letters.

East Elevation

The S. Los Angeles Street (east) elevation is three bays wide. The bays are arranged in an
alternating one window, two window sequence with a vertical, protruding, brick pattern at each
end creating the impression of rectangular quoins. Most of the original, wooden, double-hung,
one-over-one windows remain. On the ground floor, the King Eddy Saloon occupies almost all
of the three bays. Part of the northernmost bay contains a recessed service entrance with a six-
panel door and a security door with a heavy galvanized metal screen; its transom is covered with
plywood. The southernmost bay is occupied by a small, vertical, neon sign reading — KING
EDDY SALOON - and a service entrance with a six-panel door and a security door with a heavy
galvanized metal screen. In 1923, all the plate glass was removed and the openings walled in.
The original prismatic glass tile transoms with small horizontal pivot windows remain; they are
painted black. The ground floor exterior brick masonry is covered with metal skin, likely cast
iron, with ornamental elements, including spandrel beam, rope molding, and recessed panel piers
and bulkheads. Near the recessed service entrance reads — JOHN PARKINSON PROPERTY —
in brass letters embedded in the sidewalk.

On the second, third, and six floors, the stringcourse of brick molding carries over from the E.
Fifth Street elevation. Recessed brick lines create the impression of radiating flat arches over the
windows of the second story. On the second and sixth stories, some horizontal brick layers are
recessed, creating the impression of large lighter-colored bands cut by thinner dark ones. The
second bay retains the original metal fire escape; in 1955 the cornice was cut so the fire escape
could extend directly to the roof.

North Elevation

The north elevation faces a two-story building. Since the hotel was designed to have only outside
rooms, the floors above the mezzanine are set back with evenly-spaced single windows; most of
the original, wooden, double-hung, one-over-one windows remain. The structural clay tile is
glazed and exposed. At the northeast corner of the L projection is a large red brick chimney with
the red brick continuing to cover the entire northern side of the projection. A painted ghost sign
at the roofline reads - KING EDWARD HOTEL ABSOLUTELY FIREPROOF.

The west elevation faces Werdin Place, also known as Indian Alley. The ground floor contains
three unevenly-spaced arched window openings and two large openings that have mostly been
filled-in with red brick; one opening contains a large window, the other contains a metal roll-up
fire door and a small window. The three windows appear to be vinyl.

The west elevation is arranged in six bays. The bay’s irregular arrangement is due to the
functional aspect of the hotel. From the north, the first bay is one window wide, the second bay
is three windows wide, the third bay is one window wide, the fourth bay is two windows wide,
the fifth bay is one window wide, and the sixth bay is one window wide. The window sizes are
also irregular. Most of the original, wooden, double-hung, one-over-one windows remain. The
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window openings on floors one through four are arched; the sixth floor’s openings are not
arched. The first quarter of the elevation is rusticated brick; the rest is clad in tan-colored,
unglazed brick. All of the ornamentation that adorns the E. Fifth Street (south) elevation can be
seen on the north elevation, with the exception of the protruding brick pilasters and the recessed
brick line radiating arches.

Interior

The hotel has 150 guest rooms, some with private baths. The guest room floors were renovated
in 2018-2019. The double-height lobby retains most of its historic fabric. The lobby retains its
multi-colored mosaic tile floor, Scagliola marble columns reaching floor to ceiling with large
capitals, crown molding with corbels, marble wainscoting, dark Egyptian marble counter, arched
wall niches framed in marble and topped with molding, a large molded-plaster mantel clock,
Juliet balcony, marble mythical fish wall fountain, the original hotel safe, the wooden
key/message wall cabinet, marble and metal console table, and one of the original wooden
elevators with brass doors. Over both elevator doors are original stained glass arched transoms
behind plywood. The original garden-themed murals in the arched wall niches have been painted
over. Parkinson’s hometown flower, the Red Rose of Lancaster, can be found throughout the
lobby.

The mezzanine woman’s balcony was added in 1925. The banister and newels are cast iron; the
handrails are made of wood and the risers and treads are carpeted. The small wood-and-glass
partitioned space behind the mezzanine stairs was likely added at the same time; the space was
likely used for women traveling alone to discretely check-in to the hotel.

Interior — King Eddy Saloon

The King Eddy Saloon at 129-131 E. Fifth Street is at the northwest corner of E. Fifth and S. Los
Angeles Streets. The storefront at 131 has been continuously associated with the sale of drink
and food since 1921. The interior has been remodeled through the years. In 1923, 131’s large
plate glass windows were removed and the openings closed. A building permit from 1933 shows
the current concrete stairs, which provided direct basement access from the rear of the bar. In
approximately 1960, the wall between 131 and 129 was removed, combining the two storefronts.
The King Eddy Saloon’s defining feature is its large, circa 1960, horseshoe-shaped bar.

Interior — Basement

About two-thirds of the basement was dedicated to the running of the hotel; it is currently used
as storage. Some remnants of that period remain- wooden shelves labeled “towels,” “face
clothes,” and “bed sheets,” painted wall signage, wooden doors, marble wainscoting, freight
elevators, and boilers.

The easternmost one-third of the basement still functions as storage; rooms roughly matching the
footprints of the storefronts above are separated by walls of structural clay tile. A small room at
the northernmost side under 127 E. Fifth Street appears to have been a men’s restroom. Graffiti
from 1905 to the 1930s is written in lead and grease pencil on the walls; the messages and
responses are mostly sexual, both heterosexual and homosexual, and the language reflects the
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period. The drawings depict women in period dress and hairstyles. There are four distinct
drawings which depict people from the early 1900s period, including a Chinese man with a
queue hairstyle. In addition, a man named “Willie Garing,” wrote his initials on the wall multiple
times throughout the period. Off this small room is a stairway that appears to lead to 127 E. Fifth
Street; it has been sealed at both openings. Missing structural clay tiles reveal period artifacts and
debris from 1932. The small room’s graffiti and stairway are recent discoveries and need further
study.

The large room under 129-131 E. Fifth Street contains a small room and a restroom on the
northernmost wall. The remnants of a kitchen (likely installed in the early 1920s) are along the
easternmost wall, along with a large steel stove hood, food preparation spaces, a cold room, and
a freight elevator. There appears to have once been a, roughly, ten-foot wooden stage at the
southeast corner; the depth of the stage has been modified over the years. Found under the stage
were sewing needles, bobbin, thread, thread puller, and thimbles that appear to be of the time.

Most of the walls, structural posts, and ceiling appear to have once been completely covered with
a painted mural; water has damaged much of the mural and some of it has been painted over. The
mural is painted in the German Expressionist style. Each element in the mural has heavy black
outline; the mural uses the colors green, brown, yellow, red, and blue. The murals on the
southernmost and northernmost walls, structural posts, and ceiling contain pastoral scenes of
trees, bushes, hills, houses, and clear skies; the houses are reminiscent of multistoried Bavarian
houses and the landscape is suggestive of Dr. Seuss illustrations.

The westernmost wall and the kitchen wooden partition wall contains the best-preserved part of
the mural; it is a ratskeller motif with a pattern of wooden-barrel beer kegs housed in cracking,
plaster-covered, arched niches with foamy mugs of beer sitting on wooden stools under each tap.
The paint colors, the flat look, and the German Expressionist style strongly suggest that the
mural was likely painted in the 1920s, and the artist was likely a theater/film scenic artist or art
designer.

Historical Analysis

In 2016, SurveyLA found the King Edward Hotel eligible for local, state, and national register as
an individual resource under Criteria A and C. Under Criteria A, SurveyLA found the building to
be an excellent example of Beaux Arts commercial architecture in Downtown Los Angeles, and
a work of noted Los Angeles architects Parkinson and Bergstrom. Under Criteria A and C,
SurveyLA found the building to be an excellent example of an early 20" century hotel in
Downtown Los Angeles, exhibiting essential characteristics of the property type, and reflecting
early patterns of commercial development in Los Angeles’ central business district. Under
Criteria A, SurveyLA found the building to be significant as the long-term location of the King
Eddy Saloon, a business important to the commercial identity and prohibition history of
Downtown Los Angeles; the bar has been continuously run since 1933 under different names at
this location.?

2 City of Los Angeles, “Central City Individual Resources — 09/02/16,” 10-11.
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In 2007, the Fifth Street-Main Street Commercial Historic District was evaluated in 2007 as part
of the Section 106 review process. The district was found to be eligible for National Register
under Criteria A and C. The King Edward Hotel is listed as a contributor to the district and listed
on the California Register of Historic Places.®

In 1976, the Los Angeles Natural History Museum prepared a DPR for the King Edward Hotel.
The DPR found it eligible for National Register and stated that it remains a distinctive and well-
preserved edifice.

7B. Statements of Significance

Is identified with important events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies
significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic, or social history of the nation,
state, city, or community.

The King Edward Hotel is an excellent example of an early 20" century hotel in Downtown Los
Angeles, exhibiting essential characteristics of the property type, and reflecting early patterns of
commercial development in Los Angeles’ central business district. The King Eddy Saloon is
significant as the long-term location of the King Eddy Saloon, a business important to the
commercial identity and prohibition history of Downtown Los Angeles; the bar has been
continuously run since 1933 under different names at this location.

Commercial Development: Hotels

The King Edward Hotel is located at the eastern edge of downtown and the western edge of
Central City East. The downtown area where the building is located is generally associated with
the Historic Core and the Fifth Street-Main Street Commercial Historic District. Central City
East includes the Fifth Street Single-Room Occupancy Hotel Historic District, the Skid Row
Single-Room Occupancy Hotel Historic District, and the Wholesale and Toy District. The King
Edward Hotel, being on the edge of two very distinct areas, has been heavily influenced by each
place’s history and evolving cultural fabric.

After 1895, downtown Los Angeles hotel construction was inspired by two passenger rail depots
that served transcontinental routes. A third transcontinental depot was added in 1900 that served
the San Pedro, Los Angeles, and Salt Lake Railroad, which would eventually become part of the
Union Pacific system.®

During this time, the migration west to California was mainly for jobs in seasonal labor, and the
soon-to-be bourgeoning work in the automobile manufacturing industry and film industry.
California was also a destination for salesmen, businessmen, and tourists. Anyone coming into
Los Angeles via train, almost always had to arrive first at the Arcade Depot at Alameda Street
and E. Fifth Street in Central City East. Central City East was a unique “base of operations” for

3 City of Los Angeles, “Central City: Historic Districts, Planning Districts and Multi-Property Resources — 09/02/16,” 6.
4 Sitton and Smith, “King Edward Hotel DPR.”
® Prosser, “Context: Commercial Development, 1859-1980; Theme: Hotels, 1870-1980,” 9.
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workers and tourists because it had a diverse range of housing, social services, and transit
options.®

Real estate developers and newspaper men painted a “moral and racial purity” image of Los
Angeles.” Los Angeles was advertised as having magical outdoors with flowering and fruit-filled
trees, a perfect temperature, plentiful and good-paying jobs, and most of all — opportunity. This
manufactured image ultimately lead to a significant population growth every year.

The pre-1895 lodging houses were known less for their quality and more for the owner’s and
operator’s décor and personality. After 1895, in response to the increasing amount of rail
travelers, the downtown hotel became larger and taller and took on a luxuriousness that either
catered to businessmen or served as a respectable family hostelry.® New construction technology
allowed for taller buildings with the use of steel and concrete or terra cotta and hollow tile
framing instead of wood framing.® The Beaux Arts style, which was associated with large
commercial buildings on the East Coast, was the favored style with these new hotels.® The new
hotels also incorporated advances in the technologies of comfort and convenience, such as
electricity, telephones, steam heat, proper ventilation, and perhaps the biggest convenience in tall
buildings - the elevator.

The new hotels evolved into a business type by using marketing to boast of these new
advancements. They played a prominent role in local commerce as many of the hotels used part
of their first floor as a lobby and part leased to commercial business for the pedestrian public.!
The new hotel also offered spaces for social activities. They had private dining rooms and ball
rooms to hold events, once only held in homes, churches, or social clubs.*?

The oldest example of this new commercial hotel is the Van Nuys Hotel (now Barclay Hotel) on
Fourth and Main Streets; it was designed by Morgan & Walls in 1896. Its Beaux Arts style
accentuated the vertical nature of the building. Its density allowed for a spacious lobby and
stairway, a dining room, and a bar that was accessible to the public. The Van Nuys Hotel was
also the first to feature electricity and telephones in every room.*3

In the early 1900s, the Los Angeles Times contained a semi-regular column titled “Fifth and Los
Angeles Street.” The column charted new development in the area of E. Fifth and Los Angeles
Streets. In 1902, wealthy banker and real estate investor, Victor Ponet, and architect John
Parkinson each bought parcels of land to redevelop on the east and west sides, respectively, of E.
Fifth and Los Angeles Streets. 1* The King Edward Hotel was the first to redevelop the area of E.

& Spivack, “Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA),” accessed February 22, 2019, https://www.scribd.com/document/59101874/History-of-
Skid-Row.

" Buntin, L.A. Noir, 12.

8 Prosser, 9.

® Ibid, 10.

10 Wallach et al, Images of America: Historic Hotels of Los Angeles and Hollywood, 9; Prosser, 9.

1 Prosser, 42.

2 Ipid, 12.

% Ibid, 32-33.

14 Los Angeles Times, “Among Real Estate Owners and Dealers,” Al.
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Fifth Street and Los Angeles Street. At the time, Los Angeles Street was still unpaved. Ponet and
Parkinson petitioned the City Council to have it paved.™

The Pacific Electric Railway sparked a new construction boom when it planned and built its
main headquarters and terminal for the Pacific Electric Red Car Lines at Sixth and Main Streets
in 1905. These lines serviced downtown and provided connections east and south of downtown,
most notably to the Glendale Line. It effectively forced the city’s business district, mostly
centered at Second and Spring Streets, to move its center to Sixth and Main Streets.® Several
hotels, including the King Edward Hotel, offered horse-drawn carriage, and later autobus, transit
to and from stations.’

The streetcar and interurban systems helped individual districts to form naturally — office
structures catering mainly to banking and finance developed on S. Spring Street, department
stores and theatres formed on S. Broadway Street, and, due to its proximity to the depots, S.
Main Street, Los Angeles Street, and Fifth Street became the hotel district. 18

By 1905, construction on the King Edward Hotel and Alexandria Hotel was well under way.
With the construction and success of this new brand of luxurious hotel, only two blocks apart,
the surrounding area steadily flourished with new and repurposed commercial and hotel
buildings. In 1910, across from the King Edward Hotel to the south, the six-story, 215-room,
Arthur Rolland Kelly-designed Baltimore Hotel was built.'° The two hotels were joined by the
Rosslyn Hotel in 1914, just one block away. The Rosslyn Hotel was considerably taller and
bigger at 12 stories and 750 rooms. Development slowed during World War I; however, by 1923
the Rosslyn Hotel Annex was built across from the original hotel. Both Rosslyn Hotels
accounted for 1100 rooms and 800 baths.?° The Cecil Hotel was built a year later in 1924 at
Seventh and Main Streets. Four out of six of these new hotels were designed by John Parkinson
and/or Parkinson & Bergstrom and/or Parkinson & Parkinson, the Baltimore Hotel and the Cecil
Hotel being the exceptions. These hotels played a fundamental role in the way tourists
envisioned and experienced Los Angeles. Potential hotel guests came to downtown Los Angeles
from the east; the new hotel business signs all faced east.?* The City of Los Angeles even used
the existence and the attributes of these hotels in their promotional tourist brochures.?

In 1919, the Union Stage Depot opened at the northeast side of Fifth and Los Angeles Streets,
diagonally across the street from the King Edward Hotel. The depot had six lines running plus

15 Los Angeles Herald, “Ask for Paving on South Los Angeles,” Vol 34, No 54.

16 ERHA, “Pacific Electric: Main Street Station,” accessed March 28, 2019, http://www.erha.org/pelines/penmss.htm; Los Angeles Times, “New
Attorney For Santa Fe: Terminal Needed,” Al.

7 The Huntington Library, Southern California Edison Photographs and Negatives, “The King Edward Hotel automobile bus,” accessed March
23, 2019, https://hdl.huntington.org/digital/collection/p16003coll2/id/12226/.

18 Prosser, 10.

9 Los Angeles Times, “The New Baltimore: Six-story Hotel at Fifth and Los Angeles to Cost Nearly Two Hundred Thousand,” Los Angeles
Times (June 6 1909): V24,

20 prosser, 33.

2 Spivack, 5.

22 Kendrick, Megan, “Stay in L.A.: Hotels and the Representation of Urban Public Spaces in Los Angeles, 1880s-1950s,” accessed April 3, 2019,
http://digitallibrary.usc.edu/cdm/compoundobject/collection/p15799coll127/id/156635/rec/1.
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touring buses that went to the Mexican border, Imperial Valley, Arizona, San Francisco, and the
San Bernardino “mountain camps.”?

During this time, there was also a working-class hotel construction boom. The railroads had
helped increase downtown’s transient agricultural laborer, railroad, and construction population.
This new population of primarily single men doing seasonal work needed hotel lodgings.?* These
new class of hotels were located close to the King Edward Hotel; Los Angeles Street became a
dividing line between the bourgeoning central business district to the west, and the seasonal
labor/working-class area to the east. These new accommodations were generally affordable to
build because of their wood frame construction. They had little to no common areas and less
bathrooms for each patron. They did not have elevators, but they did have retail space on the first
floor. These hotels are commonly referred to as Single Room Occupancy (SRO) Hotels.?® These
hotels were built for those with a modest income and no intention to settle in Los Angeles
permanently. They were more likely to offer rooms by the week or by the month. Although all
hotels would offer their rooms by the week and month as well as by the day, by the 1920s the
introduction of the apartment house would cause hotel living to become more associated with
these working-class establishments.?®

The early 1920s brought a series of problems for the once new and luxurious downtown hotel
district. Firstly, even though the streetcar lines connecting the stations were still heavily
patronized, the introduction of the automobile made the hotel patron less reliant on needing to be
close to stations. Secondly, because the downtown hotel did not have private bathrooms in every
room, these hotels were now considered obsolete. The King Edward Hotel did try to make up for
the lack of private bathrooms by installing bathtubs in some rooms and more shower-rooms on
every floor but it was still not enough to change the new belief that regardless of how ornate the
shared shower or toilet rooms were, they were now considered “second-class.” Even the opulent
and celebrated Alexandria Hotel fell into that category, as it only had 200 bathrooms for its 360
guest rooms.?” Thirdly, competition from newer hotels like the 1923 Biltmore Hotel on Fifth and
Grand Streets, to the west of the King Edward Hotel, proved to be insurmountable. When it
opened, the Biltmore Hotel had 1500 guest rooms, each with a private bathroom, and 70,000
square feet of meeting and banquet space.?® As money was being raised to build the Biltmore
Hotel, Los Angeles was chided as being “far behind” other cities in hotel development.?°

To the west of the Biltmore Hotel came the Milner Hotel in 1923, and then, in 1927, the
Mayflower Hotel opened.® It was the Biltmore Hotel though that introduced Los Angeles to the
metropolitan culmination in convention travel — food, housing, and meeting rooms all in one
place.!

2 Los Angeles Herald, “New Stage Depot Now Open,” Vol 44, No. 279.

24 Spivack, 2.

% Prosser, 44.
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Trains and trolleys by now had vastly expanded people’s ability to travel out from downtown.
The Pacific Electric tracks alone tied Los Angeles to cities and pleasure resorts in an area of
more than sixty miles. The trains stimulated the spread of suburbs and energized new
developments.®? In 1920, Los Angeles had surpassed San Francisco as the largest city in
California. By 1922, the city’s population grew to 600,000. Despite this population boom, the
downtown central business district still experienced a decline of tourists, residents, and,
eventually, shopkeepers.

With the addition of these new hotels to the west, the once convenient and respectable hotel
district became increasingly obsolete, and the line between them and the purpose-built, working-
class hotel became increasingly blurred. Ironically, it was the Parkinson & Parkinson-designed
Union Station in the mid to late 1930s which consolidated all passenger service and effectively
cut-off E. Fifth Street from its original position as being a convenient area for rail travelers. The
hotels on Fifth Street, Main Street, and Los Angeles Street were hit hard.

Although the King Edward Hotel and area hotels were hit by the loss of tourism, the traveling
worker and the businessmen needed affordable and flexible hotels. Many downtown hotels
turned into residential hotels. In the 1920s, when hotels in the area competed with the rise of
apartments, the hotels essentially became a kind of apartment that could be rented out for weeks
or months. What the area gained was a culture and identity which still flourishes.

Hotels like the King Edward Hotel were slowly shifting over to being affiliated with SROs. In
the 1930s, Central City East became an “ideal resting place” during the Great Depression
because of the well-established housing, social services, and transit options.3* During World War
I, many military personnel came through the area on their way out to the Pacific. The United
Service Organization (USO), which provided entertainment and social facilities, was located in
what is now called Skid Row; the widely accepted boundary of Skid Row is Third Street and
Seventh Street to the north and south, and Alameda Street and Main Street to the east and west.
When soldiers came back from the war, some settled in Skid Row. The SROs catered to the
lowest levels of income, the elderly, people with medical conditions, and long-term substance
abusers.*®

In the 1950s and 1960s, more than half of the SRO rooms in the area were determined
“seismically deficient.” Most were demolished; an action which displaced many people to the
streets of Skid Row. The city went from 15,000 units in the mid-1960s to 7,500 units by the early
1970s. This was coupled with the total demolition of Bunker Hill, which had also been serving a
similar purpose providing low-income housing. As a result, those people ended up in Skid Row,
on the street, or displaced throughout the city.®

Around this time, the image of the commercial hotel centered around the automobile. In the
1950s, the underground parking garage under the hotel was realized. As the decades passed, new

% Lillard, Richard G, “Turning Points,” Los Angeles 1781-1981 (August 31, 1980): 56.
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commercial hotels were built east of the Biltmore Hotel, closer to the 110 freeway. Some hotel
new-builds took advantage of the newly razed and level ground of Bunker Hill. The new hotel
became a one-stop shop for everything — lodging, convention-like accommodations, dining,
entertainment, and shopping — creating a “sense of security” for the hotel guest.®’

Instead of demolishing all of Skid Row, which many cities were doing at the time, in 1975, the
City of Los Angeles created the Redevelopment Plan. Its first goal was to create mechanisms to
stabilize the housing in the area. It included a model of acquiring existing SROs, rehabilitating
them, and then selling them to non-profit organizations. The Ross Hotel and the Panama Hotel
were among the first SROs to be acquired and rehabilitated. The issue which persisted though
was getting private owners of SRO hotels to follow this model in order to maintain and operate a
quality building. The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) created the Single Room
Occupancy Housing Corporation to do just this. To manage social services, the city took the
most dangerous and notorious SROs in Los Angeles and converted them into the Weingart
Center, starting with the old EI Rey Hotel at San Pedro and Sixth Streets. The Weingart Center is
now one of the most important centers for health and human services.

Downtown Los Angeles and the business district has experienced a major revitalization in the
late 20™ century and into the 21% century. There is an issue now of how to sustain that
revitalization to the west while also continuing to build up the quality-of-life for the low-income
population of Skid Row.*® Non-profit organizations have continued to adopt the original 1975
model to rehabilitate the area’s historic buildings, and run quality housing under effective
management. Many of the once-commercial-hotels on Fifth Street are now low-income
apartments and SROs. In 2018, AIDS Healthcare Foundation (AHF) purchased three residential
hotels in the Skid Row area, including the King Edward Hotel, the Baltimore Hotel, and the
nearby Madison Hotel on Seventh Street under the foundation’s new housing arm called, the
Healthy Housing Foundation.*® Other low-income units and SROs for transitioning homeless
people exist at the Rosslyn Annex and the Alexandria Hotel. These hotels have played a crucial
role in the development of Los Angeles and they continue to play an active and vital role in
Downtown Los Angeles.

Commercial Development: King Eddy Saloon

The King Eddy Saloon is located on the northwest corner of E. Fifth and Los Angeles Streets, as
part of the King Edward Hotel’s ground level storefronts at 129-131 E. Fifth Street. The King
Eddy Saloon, under different variations of its name, has been in continuous operation at that site
since 1933, and likely earlier as a semi-secret bar shortly after the Volstead Act took effect in
1920. It is significant as a long-serving neighborhood bar and as a social and commercial
establishment that has long held a central, and sometimes critical, role in the changing and
evolving cultural fabric and history of the area. The King Eddy Saloon is a long-term cultural
and social landmark of the Downtown and Central City East areas of Los Angeles, and its name
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and legend are far-reaching and serve as a tourist destination and icon of Los Angeles culture. Its
legend as a prohibition bar is pervasive and far reaching as it has become a tourist destination
and an icon of Los Angeles’ authentic character.

Since at least 1888, there has been a hotel and storefronts on the site where the King Edward
Hotel/King Eddy Salon is today. There has been a saloon with a liquor license there as early as
1889.4

When the King Edward Hotel opened in 1906, the storefront at 127 E. Fifth Street was
immediately leased by well-known saloon owner and wholesale liquor salesman, D.B. Jerrue and
his partner W.H Hevren. They called their saloon the “King Edward Bar.” Its motto was — “The
Whiskies we sell are all very good, and our Anheuser Busch is right from the wood.”#?

Jerrue was President of the lobbyist group, the Liquor Dealers’ Protective Association, Vice
President and General Manager of the Mathie Brewing Co, owned saloons in Los Angeles and
Catalina Island, and was a liquor wholesaler and retailer. He also dabbled in grape growing for
brandy and wine. He was what the newspapers and prohibitionists called — a “liquor man.” 43
Jerrue owned saloons in Los Angeles since at least 1890 near El Pueblo de Los Angeles. It
appears he ran “respectable” saloons, and obeyed the various and increasingly stringent liquor
laws through the years. Jerrue left Los Angeles and the King Edward Bar in 1914 for the
Anaheim Brewing Company in Anaheim.

Hevren and his partner, Clarence D. Richardson, took over the King Edward Bar from Jerrue.
Hevren appears to be more associated with knowing how to run less-respectable establishments.
Hevren’s bar in Avalon, Catalina would lose $10,000 worth of liquor stock in a fire,* and during
prohibition, Hevren would be arrested for running a gambling den in Avalon.

The management of the King Edward Hotel and the owners of the King Edward Bar had prior
business relationships. Richardson, along with Jerrue, and soon-to-be King Edward Hotel
manager, Edward Dunham, incorporated the Avalon Hotel Association.* In 1909, Dunham and
Walter E. Smith bought the lease for the King Edward Hotel. Dunham was associated with the
Los Angeles hotel business “since the days of the old Pico House” and had opened the Hotel
Nadeau. Dunham and Smith held the hotel’s lease until a large interest was bought by hotel man
and future politician Thomas L. Dodge in 1920.4¢

In the early 1900s and into the 1920s, the intersection of E. Fifth and Los Angeles Streets was
crowded with foot traffic from the Arcade Depot and its rail line which ran up Fifth Street, along
with the Pacific Electric Depot at Sixth and Main Streets. This and new development brought an
eclectic mix of people, including tourists, businessmen, wholesalers, seasonal workers, and street
performers.

4l Los Angeles Herald, “News,” Vol 33, No 55.

42 California State Federation of Labor, *“Advertisement,” 62.

43 Los Angeles Times, “Liquor Men Organize,” 14.

4 San Pedro News Pilot, “Will Avalon be Rebuilt? Is Question,” Vol 3, No 51.
4 Los Angeles Herald, “Incorporations,” Vol 32, Number 244.
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The empty lots and wide sidewalks were a magnet for “barking peddlers of phony jewelry and
jejune junk,” gamblers playing “cane-and-ring” and rack games, socialists, snake shows,
vaudeville performances, and medicine peddlers like the “Great Fer-Don.”*’ Prohibitionists and
preachers pulled their “Gospel Wagon” into the empty lot across from the King Edward Hotel
and would rail against the “accursed dispenser of misery, enemy of health and robber of pockets,
the iniquitous saloon.”#® The patrons at the King Edward Bar were known to spill out onto the
street and heckle when this occurred.

A manufactured image of plentifulness and opportunity ultimately caused Los Angeles’
population to grow considerably each year. A new population attracted by the “agricultural
Garden of Eden,”*® came to find out that the cost of living was high, and that most of the jobs
were seasonal. The new transient population, predominantly made up of single men, attracted
new services that catered to lodging, entertainment in the form of saloons, restaurants, taxi halls,
brothels, and social clubs, and utilitarian needs like small shops for dry goods and laundry.*
These people and these places created a neighborhood.

Prohibitionists slowly chipped away at Los Angeles’ saloons — in 1890, an ordinance outlawed
the sale of liquor on Sundays;°! the early/mid 1900s brought “saloon zones,” which limited the
number of saloons and segregated an area solely for drinking; the early 1900s and into
prohibition brought heavy taxes placed on saloons and wholesale liquor dealers in the form of
monthly license fees, and the introduction of different classes of licenses and subsequent fees for
the liquor industry.>? Prohibitionists also attacked the secrecy aspect of most saloons. The Los
Angeles Times reported on various saloon violations, including patrons using private rooms,
boxes, booths, and cellars to hide the act of drinking and entertainment. It was also reported that
patrons were using side and rear saloon entrances, and special knocks to gain entry. These
behaviors would all become hallmarks of prohibition.>

1917 marked the beginning of prohibition when California voted to go partially dry. As a result,
Hevren and Richardson were forced to close the King Edward Bar in 1918. It is likely that they
were storing liquor in the basement under the bar, but it is unclear if they continued to sell liquor
from that location. The stairs that lead from the bar to the basement were most likely closed-up
when prohibition ended; a newspaper dated from 1932 was found among the period debris in the
stairwell. After the bar closed in 1918, 127 E. Fifth Street became a barbershop, and a cigar
manufacturer and retailer; barbershops and cigar retailers were associated with the selling of
illegal liquor during prohibition. The Volstead Act was implemented in 1920.

During the early days of prohibition, it was argued that “if the saloon had been altogether evil,
there would be no need for a substitute.” Op-eds in the newspapers yearned for the “normalness”
which the saloon provided — any class of man could get the same drink, have a cheap but good

47 Los Angeles Herald, “Claims Men Are Fakers: Five Arrested in Conducting Games,” 3.
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meal, feel the comradery and even-class of its patrons, and take part in the spirit of democracy
from social clubs and strangers. In the saloon, “the workingman could ‘shake out his heart.””%*

In 1921, Ernest Vierke, a former saloon and liquor man, and his partner, A.M. Miller, opened a
soda parlor in the storefront at 131 E. Fifth Street; this was the first food and drink establishment
in that location. Vierke was a German-born immigrant who came to Los Angeles in the 1900s by
way of Massachusetts. He was very proud of his German heritage, involving himself in German-
American singing and social clubs.>® Vierke stated his occupation as a barber on the U.S.
Census; however, the city directories stated that he owned soda parlors.

While soda parlors had become a regular treat before or after a show on Broadway (and popular
with women), some also became a front for selling bootleg liquor. Many soda parlors in the
vicinity of the King Edward Hotel were raided and people were arrested for buying bootleg
liquor at the intersection of E. Fifth and Los Angeles Streets. There is no known record of
Vierke’s soda parlor being raided.®

Vierke owned saloons in Los Angeles dating back to the 1890s. Before prohibition, he and A.H.
Tepper owned the Schlitz Buffet and Saloon one block from the King Edward Hotel at E. Fifth
and Main Streets. They heavily advertised their saloon through newspapers and postcards, and
gave away ceramic beer steins with the image of Vierke and Tepper proudly posing with their
beer barrels.®’

Interestingly, there are no known advertisements for the soda parlor at 131 E. Fifth Street. And,
suspiciously, in 1923 Vierke pulled a building permit to remove all the large plate glass windows
and fill in the openings with wood and plaster, leaving the soda parlor storefront on a busy
downtown corner with no windows.

In the basement under 129-131 E. Fifth Street are the remnants of a commercial kitchen with a
cold room and freight elevator. There is also a portion of a stage. A German-inspired, colorful
mural once completely covered the walls, structural posts, and ceiling. The mural is German
ratskeller themed — Bavarian-style houses, wood barrel beer kegs, foamy mugs of beers, and
arches with cracking stucco and brick underneath. It seems likely that Vierke created this
basement restaurant and entertainment space since the mural appears to date to the 1920s and is
German-themed. The mural, dated by a graffiti expert, animation historian and backdrop/set
designer, needs more study.

The only known, first-hand knowledge of the King Edward Hotel speakeasy is by American
author, John Fante. While living in Depression-era Los Angeles, he wrote about his experience
in the “King Edward Cellar” in his novel, Ask the Dust.

So down to Main Street and to Fifth Street, to the long dark bars, to the King Edward
Cellar, and there a girl with yellow hair and sickness in her smile.... So your name is

5 Los Angeles Times, “After the Saloon—What?” 11122,
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Jean,' | said. 'Well, well, well, a pretty name.' We'll dance.... One drink, two drinks, three
drinks. What's that you're drinking, Jean? | tasted it, that brownish stuff, looked like
whiskey, must have been whiskey, such a face she made, her sweet face so contorted. But
it wasn't whiskey, -it was tea, plain tea, forty cents' a slug. Jean, a little liar, trying to fool
a great author.®

Unfortunately, Fante does not give any other description of the place except that it was one of the
“long dark bars” off Fifth and Main Streets. Fante does refer to the bar as the “King Edward
Cellar,” which likely means the bar was in the basement. His experience refers to prostitution,
which, along with gambling, was widely seen as good for business as long as it was done
discreetly.®® It is known during the time of the King Edward Hotel speakeasy, that the main lease
holder, Thomas L. Dodge, made an average of $50,000 profit every year off the “hotel and
building lease.”®°

During prohibition, the country was familiar with how to hide both the consumption and the
manufacturing of liquor. The Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD) and city officials were
complicit in the liquor trade and the running of speakeasies. An LAPD statement from 1931
boasted, “Booze Barons of other climes are just bootleggers in Los Angeles.”®! Liquor came
from the northern Canadian border and the Southern Mexican border. The Los Angeles Examiner
estimated that $50,000,000 worth of liquor was smuggled into the California from Canada in
1924.%2 The speakeasies that were raided were either unwanted competition, having trouble
controlling their patrons, or selling “rot gut” and making people sick.5® Compared to other states,
California was the “wettest” and only had a fifteen percent enforcement rate. Most who were
arrested were let go on “insufficient evidence.”%*

During the years of prohibition, Downtown Los Angeles was “a circus.” The motley performers
that once crammed the intersection of Fifth Street between Los Angeles and Main Streets booked
performances at the theaters lining on and off Broadway. Silent films packed the movie
palaces.®® The area around the King Edward Hotel was changing to suit the transient population
that now occupied area lodging houses, and hotels like the King Edward Hotel were turning into
residential hotels. In the 1930s, the area became an “ideal resting place” during the Great
Depression because of the well-established housing, social services, and transit options.%®
Soldiers brought through the area during the World Wars now settled in the area because of
entertainment and social services.

When prohibition was repealed in 1933, the “King Edward Grill” was granted a license to sell
3.2 percent beer and wine.” California was still waiting for the 1917 California Gandler
ordinance to be repealed.®” The license was revoked a month later because “the restaurant had
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not been operated at that location as long as the commission was first informed.”® Through the
years, the name and address changed; the address was either 129 or 131 E. Fifth Street, or 455 S.
Los Angeles Street. The formal name was the “King Edward Cellar Cafe” as can be gleaned
from an entrance canopy building permit in May of 1933. The “King Edward Cafe” name was
associated with having its dance permit revoked for operating after business hours.®® The
Guardian (a Los Angeles Police Department publication) advertised the “King Edward Cellar” at
131 E. Fifth Street as having the “hottest shows in town” and where patrons could “dine, drink,
and dance.”’® Few saloons marketed to the LAPD at this time, so it is likely that the LAPD was
complicit in the existence of the King Edward Hotel speakeasy during prohibition.

What came to be known as the “King Eddy Saloon” served cheap food, beer, and liquor. The
“new” stairs to the basement, added in 1933, offered the patron access to dancing, shows, and
likely prostitution.

It is unclear when the bar name officially changed to the “King Eddy Saloon,” but it was likely
in the 1960s when new owners expanded the bar to include the storefront at 129 E. Fifth Street to
make a “new bar room” and new fagade. Prior to 2012, the King Eddy Saloon was owned by the
same family since the 1960s. Babe Croik bought the bar with money he earned and saved
running downtown parking lots."*

As times changed in Downtown Los Angeles and Skid Row, the King Eddy Saloon was there — it
opened at 6am and closed at 2am, seven days a week — providing affordable meals and drink, a
home away from home, a place to gather, and to offer fraternity and community. Famous authors
like Charles Bukowski and John Fante have drank at The King Eddy Saloon adding to its allure,
but it is the regular patrons who have kept the place alive. It is the downtown regulars who have
given the place its character and authenticity, who assure that at any time an acquaintance will be
there to engage in conversation, to listen, and who will make the newcomer feel welcome. "

Like the neighborhood and the people who have populated it, the King Eddy Saloon is a
survivor. It persisted when the Pacific Electric Depot stopped its rail lines in the 1940s,” when
the LAPD was busting “b-girl row” bars on E. Fifth Street,’* and when Bunker Hill was
demolished displacing 11,000 residents. It was respite from the peep-shows, strip clubs, the neon
and flashing bulbs of the 1950s through 1970s. It survived the crack epidemic that was
responsible for closing more than a dozen bars in Skid Row,” and it survived the planned
gentrification re-vamp in 2013. The King Eddy Saloon has offered stability and continuity to a
population that often has too little of both.
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Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of construction;
or represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or architect whose individual
genius influenced his or her age.

The King Edward Hotel is significant in the context of architecture as an early example of a
Beaux Arts commercial building, and as a remarkable work of master architect, John
Parkinson.®

Beaux Arts style

The Beaux Arts architectural style flourished from about 1877 to 1930 and is characterized by an
eclectic combination of elements from the Greek, Roman, Renaissance, and Baroque periods.
Mostly seen as a grandiose style of architecture, it was widely applied to American public
buildings, such as courthouses, libraries, museums, schools, hotels, and railroad terminals.””

The Beaux Arts style is named after the Ecole des Beaux-Arts school of architecture in Paris.
The Ecole des Beaux-Aurts stressed in their architectural education the design principles based on
orderliness and symmetry, and a deep understanding of European and Mediterranean architecture
from ancient Greece and Rome through the Renaissance, as well as a faithful recreation of these
architectural forms and features. "

The first American to enter the Ecole was Richard Morris Hunt (New York Metropolitan
Museum of Art) in 1846. Thereafter, many architects and landscape architects attended the
school as it was considered the most prestigious school of architecture in the world. The alumni
would go on to influence city planning, infrastructure, parks, and architecture across the United
States, and be the impetus for the “City Beautiful” movement. Newly formed architecture
schools in the United States, which adopted the Beaux Arts practices and often were staffed by
Ecole alumni, churned out young architects who would take the Beaux Arts style and apply it to
designs across the United States. Architects such as J. Galen Howard (University of California,
Berkeley Master Plan), Carrére and Hastings of New York (New York Public Library), Daniel
H. Burnham (Chicago Master Plan), and Frederick Law Olmsted (New York City Central Park)
are some names associated with the Ecole des Beaux-Arts.

The 1893 World’s Columbian Exposition in Chicago exposed Americans to a collection of
Beaux Arts buildings and is credited with popularizing the style that soon became ubiquitous in
cities like New York, Chicago, Washington D.C., San Francisco, and eventually Los Angeles."”
Adopting the Beaux Arts style in Los Angeles demonstrated the shedding of a what had been
perceived as a “Wild West” town, or an agricultural town, to be more aligned with a national and
sophisticated style.

The Beaux Arts style came to California through architects trained in Paris and coming to
California by way of the East Coast. Albert Pissis is credited as the first Californian admitted to
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the Ecole des Beaux-Arts. The Los Angeles building booms of the 1890s to the start of World
War I, and the 1920s to the start of the Great Depression, coincided with the rise and popularity
of the Beaux Arts style.®’ Los Angeles developers and real estate speculators who had already
seized upon the potential of the transcontinental rail connection in 1876, pushed to establish Los
Angeles’ legitimacy by crafting a new image for the town of an idealized, European-American
city.! The railroad brought in new workers and a fierce competition in goods, making Los
Angeles a part of the global economy.®

As a result, Downtown Los Angeles has the largest concentration of Beaux Arts style buildings
in the Los Angeles area. The buildings are predominantly centered around the “Historic Core,”
which includes the Broadway Theater and Commercial National Register District, and the Spring
Street Financial National Register District. The majority of the buildings range from low- to mid-
rise and were built either before World War | or in the 1920s. Predominant architects and firms
associated with the Beaux Arts style in downtown Los Angeles are John Parkinson, Parkinson &
Bergstrom, Morgan & Walls, and Curlett & Beelman.

The typical Beaux Arts primary facades are like the three parts of a classical column — the
ground level as the base, the middle stories as the shaft and the uppermost section, usually with
an overhanging cornice, as the capital. Some of the general character-defining elements of the
Beaux Arts style include — symmetrical articulation, ornamental sculpture, advancing and
receding wall planes, elaborate cornices, tripartite form, lavish and intensive surface decoration,
coupled columns or pilasters, and cast concrete, stone, or light-colored brick sheathing.®3

These Beaux Arts elements also embody the principles of the great Roman architectural theorist,
Vitruvius. Every work of art should exhibit firmitas, utilitas, venustas — solid, useful, and
beautiful .8

John Parkinson

The King Edward Hotel was designed and built in 1905 by John Parkinson. Although credit for
the design was eventually given to the new firm of Parkinson & Bergstrom, there is enough
evidence to safely state that Parkinson himself designed the hotel. Parkinson purchased the land
in 1902. The building reflects Parkinson’s personal history.

Parkinson was born in 1861 in the small village of Scorton, in Lancashire, England. He grew up
working-class in a mill town near the town of Bolton. Bolton is a short distance to Rivington
township. The Rivington landscape is part isolated pastoral and part rugged hills and valleys. It is
situated on the steep slopes of Rivington Moor on the western edge of the West Pennine Moors.

Parkinson’s father was an engineer in a weaving and cotton mill; his mother was a loving
housewife. Parkinson’s ancestors were engineers, ministers in the Church of England,
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horticulturists, his great grandfather laid out of the grounds of Mount Vernon for George
Washington.®® At age fifteen, Parkinson became an apprentice under a local contractor and
builder which eventually gave him enough practical experience and confidence to enroll in the
Mechanics Institute in Bolton. After six years at the Mechanics Institute, Parkinson said he
“knew the construction of buildings from the foundation to the top of the highest finial, was a
draftsman, too, and artist born, with confidence unlimited and trained to endure.”8 The
Parkinson family motto was “Volens et Valens,” meaning the “willing and powerful.”

Soon after, Parkinson and a friend ventured to Canada and then Minneapolis where they worked
in various sawmills; Parkinson specifically learned how to build stairs and handrailing. Upon
returning to his English hometown, he found he would have to start at the bottom of his craft
despite the considerable skill and experience he gathered in North America. Parkinson had
worked up to supervising other craftsmen in America so he decided to return to the States. This
time he was set on California, a place where he had only heard about the weather and that “one
had to be very civil to avoid being shot or stabbed.”®’

After successfully making a name for himself in Napa, California and Seattle, Washington as a
draftsman and architect, Parkinson announced his move to Los Angeles in May of 1894. Los
Angeles’ established architectural firms were stiff competition for Parkinson and the
architectural credentials he had garnered in Seattle. As with all his new starts in cities, Parkinson
used his connections from previous jobs to get his foot in the door. He teamed up with contractor
Weymouth Crowell, who he had met in Seattle, to design and build an addition to the La Casa
Grande Hotel in Pasadena.®

Parkinson’s breakthrough came when he designed the Homer Laughlin building (now Grand
Central Market) located at 317 South Broadway in 1898. It was the first, Class A steel-frame
structure in Los Angeles and widely regarded as the first fireproof building in Southern
California.®® He soon built Los Angeles’ first skyscraper, the Beaux Arts style Braly building
(now Continental), completed in 1904. It was one of the first office buildings in the Spring Street
Financial District.*® The Braly building forever changed the skyline of Los Angeles; it was
called “one of the most modern office buildings west of New York City.”%! Historian, Stephen
Gee, asserted that “no single structure did more to enhance John Parkinson’s reputation than the
Braly Block.”%

Parkinson began purchasing the lots that the King Edward Hotel would be built on at the end of
1902. He initially started with a parcel of 50 x 100 feet, with a “small frame building of nominal
value” on the land. The property location was noted to be well-located, and “in the trend of
business development in the wholesale district.”®® Parkinson likely saw the advantage of the
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Fifth Street rail line and the beginning planning stages of the Pacific Electric Depot that would
be located just one block away. Lodging in the area was generally buildings of two to three
stories in height and was left over from the days when Los Angeles Street was seen as unseemly.
Parkinson was clearly speculating the area and he saw the advantages of building a hotel in an
area relatively devoid of “respectable” hotels.

In May of 1905, a building permit was issued to John Parkinson to build a three story and
basement, L-shaped, brick building at the northwest corner of Los Angeles and Fifth Streets;
Carl Leonhardt, a well-known contractor at the time, was on the permit as the builder. Two
months later, Parkinson personally took out another building permit, which added three more
stories to the building for a total of 150 guest rooms, nearly half with their own bathrooms.

Before the King Edward Hotel was formally opened on March 15" 1906, it was introduced to the
public through articles in the Los Angeles Times and the Los Angeles Herald. It was touted as a
fireproof, Class A concrete building. All 150 guest rooms were outside rooms, every room had a
telephone (great for traveling businessmen and tourists), all rooms had steam heat, hot and cold
running water, and connected to the hotel’s lobby was “the business men’s dining room,” which
took up two store fronts off E. Fifth Street. A statement of pride, and likely to keep costs down, it
was said that all building materials going into the structure were made in Los Angeles. The hotel
was called attractive, handsome, and it would have elegant finishings. %

Parkinson and The King Edward Hotel were written up extensively in Fireproof Magazine. The
hotel’s original name was “The Rivington Hotel.” Parkinson wrote how he employed new
techniques in the construction of the hotel to make it more fireproof than any building he had
constructed to date. He wrote that by eliminating much of the iron and steel work above the first
story he could instead use hollow, semi-porous, tile partitions that would form the supports for
the floors.% The walls employed similar tile ranging from six to twelve inches, the exterior walls
having the most thickness with the addition of glazed tiles. A note in the published plans
explained that the bearing walls be built in “selected hard burned tile” and that the tile must be
“thoroughly” soaked in water before being built into the work. Parkinson wrote that his hotel
would be “the forerunner” of how to build an economical, fireproof building.®

Parkinson would change the hotel’s name from “The Rivington Hotel to “The King Edward
Hotel” when it was suggested to him by the developer of the Alexandria Hotel, Robert A.
Rowen. Rowen was a wealthy landowner and developer. Apparently, Rowan felt the Alexandria,
being called “the epitome of Angeleno elegance,” had to have her King.®” King Edward V11, the
new King of Great Britain, had ascended to the throne a few years before and Alexandra was his
queen. Parkinson describes King Edward several times in his book, calling him “a dashing,
laughing...carefree, happy, lucky chap.” The name was also to convey a style and architectural
design relationship between the two hotels. And, of course, Parkinson had designed both hotels.
The furnishings were said to “suggest solid comfort” and along the same lines as the Alexandria
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Hotel. The King Edward Hotel was built and furnished for $340,000; the lobby’s “English vein
Cascara” and black and gold Egyptian marble alone cost more than $6000.%

Parkinson’s original intention to name his hotel after his childhood home can be found in the
lobby’s molded-plaster mantel clock base — the prominent initials “T R” stand for “The
Rivington.” The moors of the Rivington area near Bolton was a place Parkinson frequently
visited.% In his book, Incidents by the way, Parkinson wrote about the scenery that inspired him.

...my father would take me for a walk extending for miles into the country along the
beautiful English lanes and by field paths; a great oak tree at a curve in the road, a view
down some hawthorn bordered side lane, the lark singing joyfully almost out of sight
high up in the sky, the cattle quietly browsing in the fields; on the higher places more
distant views of fields extending to the heather covered moors dimly outlined against the
sky; often gray clouds, sometimes white with vivid blue patches here and there....1%

Even though the name of the hotel changed from “The Rivington,” Parkinson continued with his
plans to pay homage to the place of his childhood and inspiration. Most examples can be found
in the hotel lobby, including pastoral murals painted in the lobby’s recessed niches that can be
seen in 1906 photos (currently painted over), the flower design in the elevator transom’s stained
glass, and the flower motif that is the Red Rose of Lancaster which adorn the lobby’s clock,
columns, corbels, staircase, and floor.

Near the hotel’s main entrance of E. Fifth Street is a cornerstone reading JOHN PARKINSON
ARCHITECT,; set into the sidewalk on the building’s Los Angeles Street elevation are the
embossed brass letters reading JOHN PARKINSON PROPERTY. Adding to the hotel’s
significance in the Parkinson’s family, the Los Angeles County Assessor records show that the
Parkinson family held onto the property until 1962, when it was sold to the Babcock family.%2

In 1905, Parkinson started an architectural firm with Edwin Bergstrom; Bergstrom was described
as being a “practical architect of wide experience.” % He was a graduate of Boston Institute of
Technology and Sheffield Scientific School at Yale. Their offices were in the newly built Braly
Building. By 1906, Parkinson alone had already designed over a hundred office buildings, hotels,
banks, residences, and club houses in Los Angeles, including the Alexandria Hotel, the Trust
Building, the Johnson Building, the California Club, the Angelus Hotel, the Currier Building,
and the Edison Company Power House. %

In just five years, the firm of Parkinson & Bergstrom was said to have designed more Class A
buildings than any other architect in the west. The firm continued their preference for steel frame
with brick walls and terra cotta ornamentation over reinforced concrete.% In 1910, their drafting
office employed over two dozen draftsmen and the buildings under construction by the firm
accounted for more than six million dollars in expenditures. The buildings included the Hotel

% Los Angeles Herald, “Hotel King Edward Opens Doors to Guests,” Vol 33, No 169.

100 parkinson, Incidents by the way, 26

01 |pid, 16-17.
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195 The Architect and Engineer of California, “The Work of John Parkinson and Edwin Bergstrom,” 38.
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Utah and Kearns building in Utah, an addition to the Alexandria Hotel, and the Los Angeles
Athletic Club. Their success was said to come from the “frank expression of their buildings,” the
“practical” arrangement in plans, and their “sound” business acumen.% In 1915, after ten years
of partnership, Parkinson and Bergstrom went their separate ways. By this time, it was reported
that their firm was responsible for eighty percent of the modern office buildings in Los
Angeles.*®” Other notable buildings designed by the firm included Bullocks Department Store
(downtown), the Bartlett Building (Union Oil Company), the Rosslyn Hotel, and Blackstone’s
Department Store.

Parkinson continued to design buildings under his name. In 1916, he turned in permits for the
city’s biggest building permit ever issued at the time — the Los Angeles Wholesale Terminal
buildings. It consisted of four buildings spread out over five acres.%® His son, Donald Berthold
Parkinson, joined his father’s firm after his studies at Massachusetts Institute of Technology
School of Architecture and his service in World War I. Architect John C. Austen wrote they
made a “splendid team, one with ripe experience, and the other with the enthusiasm of youth.”1%
The firm was aptly named Parkinson & Parkinson. Their firm is responsible for designing the
city’s most important civic buildings, including the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum, Los
Angeles City Hall, Los Angeles Hall of Justice (with the Allied Architects Association), and the
Los Angeles Union Passenger Terminal (Union Station). Other notable buildings the firm
designed included the Miramar Hotel, the Rosslyn Hotel Annex, Bullocks Wilshire, various USC
buildings, the Pacific Coast Stock Exchange Building (in collaboration with Samuel Lunden),
and the Manual Arts High School.

John Parkinson died on December 9, 1935. An article entitled “John Parkinson” placed him
among the architects of the Parthenon and the Taj Mahal. It said the City of Los Angeles owes
Parkinson for his vision and artistry and how he applied the “principles of beauty and truth in
architecture” to a city creating its identity.*'° The bulk of Parkinson’s buildings are located in
Downtown Los Angeles. Parkinson designed buildings in California, Nevada, Utah, and
Washington state. Many are in historic districts, and are Historic Cultural Monuments and/or on
the National Register of Historic Places.
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SOME WERE OPEN.

YALOONS THAT DISPENSED LIQUID
REFRESHMENTS YESTERDAY,

Icre und There Thronghout the
City Onses Were Discovered—A
Dry Sundny with the Excention
of a Score of Open Suloon?.

Yesterday was Sunday. The one
tiundred and seventy odd saloons
that are headquarters for *wet goods”
on ordlnary days, are supposed, in
obedience to an ordinace demand-
ing such actlon, to be closed on Sun-
day. A goodly number of saloon men
took a day off yesterday, but enough
remained to make & very fair showing
when a Times reporter made a little
itrip of Investigation, to discover just
who of the saloon men were attend-
ing strictly to business. The susplcion
that several of the men who pay a
yearly tax of $600 for the privilege of
selling liquor to thirsty citizens, are in
the habit of doing a fair day’'s business
on Sunday, despite the ordinace by
which ligquor is forbidden to be s0ld on
that day, was fully horne out yesterday
by the investigation that was made.

There is a cosy little saloon on South
Broadway, between First and Second,
known by the sign over lts entrance
as the “Office” saloon. Yesterday the
curtain before the glass doors was
drawn back, giving the passer-by, who
s0 desired, an opportunity to wlitness
the Interior, and the actions ocecurring
there. A Times reporter chanced to
be just that kind of a citizen, and step-
ping to the door, which. was not locked,
he applied his eyve to the aperture
made by the pulling back of the curtain
and watched’ the proprietor of the sa-
loon pour from a wine bottle a glass
of liquor, which a portly man, who
nonchalantly leaned against the bar,
swallowed with every manifestation of
sdtisfaction.

-Passing from this Interesting exhi-
bition, the reporter made his way to
the bar of the Hollenbeck Hotel. The
bhar-room is connected by swinging
doors with another room, containing
a small number of tables, where per-
sons who desire to drink their liquor
while sitting down can do so. A knot
of men were grouped about the bar,
and behind the counter stood an_ at-
tendant, who was, in turn, assisted by
two Chinamen. ‘L'he reporter cauea 1or
2 glass of sherry at the bar, and was
told to seat himself at a table, and
the Chinaman would serve him with
the wine. As the reporter possessed
scruples in the matter of being walit-
ed upon by a Chinaman, he left, with-
out drinking the sherry, satisfied with
the information that wine was, or
would be, served from the bar of the
Hollenbeck on Sunday.

The door of Ed Maxwell's saloon, on
XWest Second street, swung to and {ro
all day yesterday, although no drinks,
twere served while tt;‘w reporter had his
optic glued upon e scene.

I31’he g;aloon of (. Bauer at No, 243 |
South Spring street seived drinks yes- |
terday withoat 1limit. The fact that
Mr. Bauer hits a restaurant licesse in
connectlon with his saloon gives him:
no warrant £5r selling drinks over the
bar on Sunday, which he did vesterday
and is said t do every Sunday.

The 'Turn Verein saloon, on South
Main street, ran in full blast yesterday.
Throngs of hirsty men filed down the
steps of the place, consumed all the
liquor they wished and then ﬂlec} out,
wiping their lips with evident satisfac-
tion. Not the slightest attempt at
concealment was made in this saloon in
the matter af selling drinks over the

.bar. While the reporter sat at a lable,
in the short space of ten minutes, over
twenty drinks of various kinds, rang-
ing from whisky to beer were dispensed.
If a man disliked to drink at the bar,
a little room was ready for nim where
the strictest privacy was given him
while he looked upon the flowing bowl

" and incidentally swallowed its contents.

The saloon kept by Mr. Salter, at No.

314 South Main, was open throughout
.- the day, and is open every Sunday. No
- drinks are served ovér the bar here, hut

there are small rooms in abundance,
where liquor is served and drunk by the
customers of the place. The saloon at

. the northwest corner of First and Los
Angeles was filled with men through-
out the day and the festive “click’” of

. the cash reglster which could be dis-

. tinctly heard from the outside, was In-
dicative of the rushing business being
carried on In the interior. The “Presi-
dio” saloon, on Sixth and Spring street,
was not open to the amateur would-be
drinker, but that the saloon was inhabi-
ted was evident from the conversation
and laughter which proceeded from
within.

At the Oak Bar saloon on the west

. slde of New High street, a short dis-

tance south of Temple, the front door,
the side door and the rear door were
.all shut and bolted as tightly as if no
one ever thought of opening them.
Close to the rear door were two or
three men who sald they had tried to
get in and obtain needed refreshment,
- but had been unable to do so. One
would have thought the Sunday-closing
law was belng observed with puritanic
severity had it not been for certain un-
seemly noises of clinking glasses with-

in. A knock at the door falled to get-!

any response, but after a minute or |

80 there appeared at a nearby win-
dow & vision of the face of & man with
a white coat such as is usually worn
by a barkeeper,

Possibly in honor of the day he was
attired in the wwhite garment with a
view to being prepared for his final as-
cension, should occasfon demand, but,
to the worldly visfon, it looked as if
he were ready to mix cocktails.

Finding the front doors unlocked at
the Eintracht saloon on North Spring
street, the reporter thought he surely
must have found an open and notor{ous
violation of the Sunday-closing law.
‘Within it was seen there was a big
slgn over the bar saying it was closed,
The thirsty soul was able to find re-
freshment at this place only by sitting
at a table and permitting a tid bit of
some catable to be placed beside his
beer or other beverage. .

The saloon at the northwest corner
of Main and Temple atreets was closed:
that is, the front door was closed and
curtains closely drawn made it appear
there was no one within. At the rear
entrance the situation was different.
A locked screen door kept the inquisi-
tive without, but the door proper was
well ajar and a knock brought out a
man who was in his shirt sleeves. No
clinking of glasses was heard within
but it secemed strange that a saloon-
keeper should choose to remafn at a
saloon on Sunday instead
for recreation.

formerly known as the Pico House
unseemly conversation was heard. Thn'

front entrance was closed, as was als[;

the one leading to.the hotel. By a de-

vious course through the restaurant a

room was entered where a number of

men were sitting as if ready to drink.
The reporter kept on through this room
and was Just entering the bar-room
when a man who, excepting an apron
waad in the garb of a bartender, with

. serzaln degree of violense shoved him
- ous. i )

There was_no other person in the
bar-room,’and the reason why he should
manifest 50 much anxlety to keep any-
one from going in was something he
r:\'{‘lrc;d toxexnlnln.

The saloon at the northeast o
af.Ord and ‘Upper Malin- smets"‘”(?é";
..epon, but the bar was out of sight. The
reeson for this peculiar phenomenon
was that the aforesald bar was covered
with a blg cloth., A number of men
were sitting in an edjoining room, and
although  they were not drinking, it

1

ed ug 1L the cloth were not an im- |

of going out .
In the shades of the National Hotel, -

passable barrler between a thirty man
and a drink. :

A’ similar state of affairs, minus the
blg ¢loth, was to e witnessed In dhe
saloon at the northeast corner of Ala~

. méda and Aliso streets.
|+ A winding path led to the bar of the
| Strasbourg Hotel on Alameda street.
fwo men, who, had come In advance
of the reporter, ordered something just
¢s the latter entered. They were stand-
ing at the bar at the time, and two
'glasses of  a fluld which looked like
| beer, and which had the regulation
| foam, were promptly put upon the bar
and as promptly emptied down ¢wo
parched throats, Meantime, the money
was pald, and the men walked out and
away.

‘As has been before published, the
power-to compel observance of the Sun-
day-closing law lies largely in the
hands of ithe Police Commisslon. A sa-
loon-keeper will not sell liquor on Sun-
day ito @ policeman in uniform, nor in
his presence. The policemen are go well
known to the saloon men that most of
the latter would recognize mearly all of
the officers without uniforms and would
not sell to one of them nor in his pres-
ence, It is, therefore, very difficult and
usually impossible for the police de-
partment to obtain conviction of Sun-
day-liquor selling in the counts,

The Police Commission has arbirary
power to revoke any saloon license at
pleasure, and may therefore do so on
evidence which, although satisfactory,
would mot be recognlzed in the courts.
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EARTH SELLING. -

Prospective Business Properties, Well-

located Acreage, and Lats for Improve-
ment Transforred to New Owners.

' John Parkinson has purchased of
James Castrucclo, through R.
Rowan, 60x100 feet, on.the northwest

< b s Y

corner of 1.os Angeles and Fifth streets,
with smali frame bulldings of nominal
value; consideration named, $25,000.

George W. Lawrence has sold to
John Metcalf, through M. G, McKoon,
twenty-nine acres partly on the north
and partly on the souts side of Pico
street, a short distance west of the
Nevin tract and the end of the Pico-
street car llne. unhmproved; considera-
tion named, $21,000.

. J. Horne buys of J. H. Sutherland
40x100 feet, on Fifth street forty-five
feet west of Wall street,” without val-

wable improvements; consideration
named, $6400. He, will build a brick
business block. ’,

Abe Polson sells to P. J. McCormlick
and H. Hanson, 60x146 feet on the west
side of Grand avenue, midway between
Third and Fourth streets, unimproved;
conslderation named, $6000. Buyers will
improve. '

Heénry K. Shields buys of Mrs. L. A.
McAulay, through Althouse Bros., 6lx
164 fect, unimproved, on the west side |
of Green avenue, 250 feet south of
Eighth streets considration named, |
$4500. Purchaser will bufld handsome,
home on property.

WANTED IN KANSAS.

Alleged Burglar Arrested Here for |
‘Crime Said to Have Been Committed
by Him There.

Lloyd Harrls was arrested last night
at his room on West Eleventh street,
anq locked up as a fugitive from jusg-
tice, He Is sald to be wanted in Craw-
ford county, Xan., on no less than half
o ¢ozen charges of burglary in the
first degree.. YThe nature of the cases
against him is not known to the local
police, -but there seems to hiive been
some difference among the Kansas of-
ficers as to whether he should be ar-
rested.

The first Information that the police
recelved was from a constable at Me-
Cune, Kan., who asked that Harrls be
captured If possible.- On this Infor-
nation he was located and the con-
stable notifted, but he repliel that Har-
ris was not then wanted and asked
that he be not arrested. Later M. J.
Vincent, Sheriff of Crawford county,
sent a request that the arrest be made,
and stated that he had®requisition
papers already made out. Harris will
be beld until the Kan’sas officers are

heard from.
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Y BUILDERS
AND ARCHITECTS.

OPERATIONS IN BUILDING LINE
ARE STILL ACTIVE.

e ———

Houses Begun and Completed in
Various Parts of the City—Business
Buildings, Apartment Homes, Fam-
ily Mansions and Modest Modern
Cottages are Inciuded in the List.

Bulldings were completed during the

week as follows:
First Ward .
Second Ward
Third Ward ...
Fourth Ward .
Fitth Ward .
Bixth Ward .
Reventh Ward .
Elghth Ward .. .
Ninth Ward . ... .. . el g

0f these 108 were dwellings and 11
dusiness buildings.

The number of buildings hegun was
163, sixteen of them being  business
pulldings and the 1emainder dwellings,
distributed as follows

FIirst Ward ..... . 21
Second Ward Y
Third Ward ... . e 0
Fourth Ward . . . .. . v e be 12
Fifth Ward .. . . N
Bixth Ward ....... ... . 4u
Seventh Ward .. ... . . 11

Fighth Ward . [EPPEN .-
Ninth Ward . P

Last Week Building Superintendent
Hackus issued 210 permits, for im-
provements anmounting to $292,371, as
agalnst 161 permits, for Impravements
aggregating $713,161 during the corre-
eponding week of March, 1904

The Improvements begun last ween
gre divided as foows
Ward Permits Vaiuatlon,
First . o ocoen v e L 27 $12.698
Sezond .. .. . ol 2 15,260

. 36,900

28,830
49,160
46,923
33,825
. k 18,925
Ninth .. .. .. ... L0018 10.1;’5

The number of permnits fsxued o far
this month is 324, for improvements ag-
gregating $410,236, against 273 permits
for improvements amounting to $616,-
108 during the first two weeks of March,
1004,

The improvements undertaken this
‘month are clagslified as followns.

ftructure. No. permits. Values,
2-gtory brick bulldings ... 2 $23,700
l1-stery brick bulldings . .. 3 9,500
2-story frame buildings 27

Ali-stary frame hnildings 14 g

i-story frame bulldlngs ..181 181,396
Frame flats .. . ... ... 4 17,000
sheds . . . eae 29 4,173
Brick alterations . 4 12200
Frame giterations .. . 46 18,035

Apartments and tenem nts 2 17:0&0
Churches ., oo serveeiren.s 2 14,600

END
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The Pauly flats at No, 943 Santee Strest.

The Pauly Flats.

Eisewhere In this revlew s shown a
sketch of a handsome three-story com-
bination frame and cement apartment
butlding that was recently erected for
F. N. Pauly at No. 943 .8antee street,
It Is a very pretty specimen of the
plensing results obtainable from the
application of the lines of the Colonlal
style of architecture to apartment
housesx. It contains eighteen three-
room sultes, with kitchens, so hulit In
as to be models of convenience and
8pace saving; handsome vombination
fixtures, radiators, wash trays, lock-
ers, water heaters and modern con-
venlences generally. Sunny balconies
and epunclous verandas add to the
other featutes which tend to make the
house more homelike. RIS

The interfor finish Is' In'' selécted
slash grain Oregon pine, with walls
and cetlings of delicate and appropri-
ate tints to match., The bullding cost
about $15,000, and was Jesligned and
built by R, N, Lamberth & Co.

‘The house, besides being an attrac-
tive specimen of the apartment houses
now belng erected in this city, is also
something of a record breaker as to
the time In which It was put up.
Work on the bullding began December
23,,1904, and was finished March 3, or
In ten weeks. A pleture showing the
house at the end of the fifth week,
and one showing the finished bullding,
as it appeared at the end of the tenth
week, uppear In  the group. Four
months would be about the average
time required for the construction of a
building of this size, 38x106 feet, and
of the general character of this struc-
ture. The owner asked that the house
be finlshed in three months, and the
contractors in thelr efforts to comply
with that request cul the time of con-
struction down to the perlod named.

Contract Let.

‘The Henry R. Angelo Company has
secured the principal contract for the
erectlon of the Homer Laughlin build-
ing on the enst slde of HIll street, be-
tween Third und TFourth streets. It
will be 207x121 feet, an eight-story re-
inforced concrete construction, fire-
proof bullding. It is to be finlshed in
about flve months and cost about
$150,000.

Building Notes.

Architects Morgan & Walls are pre-
paring plaus for a six-story brick busi-
ness and office building that is to be
erected for 1. N. Van Nuys, on the east
side of Broadway, about midway De-
tween Fourth ang Fifth strects. The
entire bullding has been leased for n
term of yeurs from date of comple-
tion by the Parmelee-Dorman Com-
pany. About three stories of the new
building wiil, probably, be required
for the immediate use of the lessees.
The other stories will be for rent.

Architect A, L. Haley has prepared
the plans for a two-story combination
frume and cement apartment buflding
that {8 to put up for Mrs. E. Wood, at
Long Beach., It will contain four flve-
room upartments that will be supplied
with modern conveniences. The build-
Ing will cost about $5000, and is to be
finlshed in about ninety days.

The Burck-Gwynn Compuny has
tuken the contract to erect for Mry.
Elizabeth Leihy, a forty-room three-
story frame upartment building, at
No 787 Ceres avenue It will cost
about $7000, will be provided with mod-
ern conveniences, and Is to be com-
pleted on or before May 1.

The same company ig to build for
Mrs, LI, Bickel, a sixteen-room two-
story frame apartinent-house, at No.
736 San Julian street. Work on the
improvement will begin at once. It
will he modern in design, wiil be com-
pleted bv May 1, and cost something
over $4000. The companyv named ja also
bullding ®ix modern residences in six
different parts of the city

O M. Hall has had plang prepared
for a seven-room tuo-story frame resi-
dence which he will have erected on a
lot of the McCarthy Company’'s Main
Street and Moneta Avenue tract, on

the south =lde of Fiftleth street, 180
feet west of Majn street, i
W. A Hicks is preparing to erect a°
six-room bungalow, {n the same tract,:
on the routh slde of Fiftieth street,’
about 200 feet east of Moneta avenue.
The following plans of new buildingse
and general bujlding notes are taken
from the Bullder and Contractor:
Architect John Parkinson has pre-
pared plans of a flve-story and base-
ment store and hote} building to be
erected for himself on the northwest
corner of Eaat Fifth and Los Angeles
streets, It will be L-shaped, and wil
front 50 feet on Los Angeles street.
140 feet on Fifth street and 100 feet
on the alley The hotel will have 120
; guest  rooms and thirty bath and
. toillat rooms, in addition to the par-
i lors  The offices and dining-rooms
I will be on the first floor, and the kit-
| ehen department in the barement The
| firet flnor has five storerooms  The ex-
s terfor will be ficed with preseed b-ick,
| with terra-cotta eapitals and cornlee
‘Thn maln sntrance will have granite
Pbisee and sandetone arrh It s in-
I tended to make the hutiding thorough-
‘ 1y firenroof, and bujlt on a <teel foame
with hollew tile vartition salls gnd
conzrete Mfloore, ‘The atore fronts will

be of {ron and plate glass ana the
interior of pine and hardwood, tlling.
Two pussenger elevators, steam hoat-
ing and ventllating system and «ll
modern appolntments.

Architect Thomus Preston fs prepar-
ing plans for Mrs, Laura B. Allon of

a two-story doublo house of twelve'
rooms to be bullt on the corner of

Twenty-second and Toberman stecqts
Modern features are to Le incorpocated,
He has also prepared plans for &
two-story seven-room frame residenue
to be buflt on Thirty-first stroot be-
tween OGrand avenue and IMgueroa
street for Mrs, Ford Smith, Hardwood
floors, beunmed celilngy, brick mantet
and rustic and shingle exterior ure
provided., !

 Re §3 also taking bids for renivdeling’

the St. Athanasius Church on ‘Luster .

street, north of Temple street.

He is also preparing drawings for a
one-story weven-room fiurae parsonsge
to be bullt in Garvanza for the Church
of the Angels. It wiil be i{u Ellza-
bethan style, half-timbered and up-to-
date In all respects, B

Architect A. M. Edelman has' pre-
pared plans for the remodeling of the
first story and entire front of the two-
story bujlding at No. 121 West Firat
street. ‘The storeroom will be con-
verted Into a vaudeville theater, with
stnge and other features. The front
will be treated with plaster and staff
work and ornamental jron and brass
work.

He has also plans of a two-story
eight-room frame residence to be built
on the west side of Hoyle avenue, near
Seventh street, for R. T. Whittleaey.
It will have blue brick mantel, pol-
fshed and hardwood floors, pateat
screens, furnace heat and all modern
features.

Architect €. H. Brown is preparing
plang of a two-story fram= store and
office bullding 35x56 feet, to be bhullt
at Sunget Beach for P. J. Hununeil
It will huve three stores and twelve
offices. The foundation wili he of pil-
ing: rustic siding., etc.

He has prepared plans for Thomas
B. Clark of a two-story savea-room
frame beach resldence at Hermosa
Beach. .

Also plans of a seven-room fraune
bungalow for Dr. Walden, to be bufit
at Sierra Madre Villa. It wlll have a
shingled exterlor, plate-glata windows,
beamed ceilings and hardwood floors

Architect J. H. Bradbeer has com-
pleted plans of a two-story brick
bullding to be erected on the north-
west corner of Ninth and Central ave-
nue for Dr. 0. S, Petter. It will cover
a ground space 48x85 feet, and contain
two slores and fourtecn rooms. Speci-
ficationr provide for a roncrete founda-
tion, pressed-brick facings, plate-glass
atore fronts, composition roofing and
staft corn'ce,

Architect Charles E. W, Hubbell haa
prepared plans of a ten-room bungalow
to he bullt at Terminal Island for
F_E. Lacey.

He has also nlans of a five-ronm cot-
tage to be huilt far himself on Warren
street, Rovie Heizhts,

Architectg Garrett & Bixby have pre-
pared plane of n  two-story frame
vullding  to  rontain two_four-rnnm
npartments with bathe for Elmaer Kin.
cafd. It {8 to be erected on Trenton
street. between Fleventh and Pleo
atropte

Architect R. . Fercuson I8 preparing
plane of a brick factory and offices for
the Maple Grove Creamery Comnane
to be built an the corner of Fiehth
atreet nnd Towne avenue, Tt will be
RON100 feet, and one story In height.
Rpecificationa nrovide for a brick foun-
dution and walls, composition roofing.
metal skviights, plastered in=ide walls,
cement ftaore. A new engine. hollers
anad refrigerating  plant  will be In-
stalled.

He has also rompleted plans and
taken bids for the erection of a two-
story frame residence of Swiss desirm
tn be bulit nt Ocean Park for Fred T.
Fames. It will contain nine rooms, In-
cluding a large cove dining-roam. ULil-
Hard room and recention hoil Tt will
have oak floors. beamed ceillnggr, brick
mantels, paneled walnerotting In din-
ing-room and other modern features.

Architects Hunt & Enger are tnking
bids for a two-story ten-room frame
recidence to bhe built on the corner of
West Twenty-recond street and Habart
boulevard. Jt wiit have hardwood
floors and finish. Mra, Kate Kelly is
the owner.

Thev have also plana of a two-story
cement niastered residence for Mrs.
Louize McNell. It will contain ten
rooms with mndern appointments and
be built en Flmuerna street between
Twentv-third and Adams street.

Architect 8. T. Norton has nrepared
rlans of a one-gtory brick building 33x
35 feet to he built on  Griffith avenue
near Washington atreet, for the Berlin
Dye Works Tt will be uced ag a dry
cleaning establishment, and be of abso-
lute fireproof construction, No wood
will be used Snecifientione  provide
for a concrete foundiation brick walls
and the rnof to be of concrete laid over
exoanded metal Iath

He has alea preorred nlans far the
new store fixtures fo be put in the
store At No 187 South Spring stree! for
Siegel Bros.

Architects Hrause & Broawn have pre-
pared plans of a two-story ten-room

Misslon residence to be built on the
corner of. Main and Thorpe streeta for
QGeorge Wirth. Bpscifications provide
for @ brick foundatlon, plastered exte-
rlor, Spanish tile roofing, stalned pine
{nterlor finlsh and modern conveni-
onced,

They hove alsp completed drawings
-of a two-story nins-room franie resl-
Qongo ta be built {n Follywecod for
Xoenry Shulthis, It will have a shingled
oxterlor, boamed oellintgs,, hardwocd
floors, brick muantels,

Architect P. W, Bhlers has propared
plana for the eroction of threo six-room
cottuges on Pleo stieal neay Berando
for the Arnold & Dodge Inveatment
Co. tg‘l’xey will b modern in n)] re-
apects, . '

Hoe !5 alzo proparing plans or certuin
alterations and  additions to tha Bt
Joseph's Hall- oni: the' corner of Santeo
and Plco strests. The hall will be en-
larged, stalrways rebdulit in o different
place and several rooms will be ndded.

Avchitect Burgess Reeve s preparing
plang for the Clty Dye Works and
Laundry Company of n serles of brick
butldings to be erected on the northeast
corner of Ninth and Bantee straete.
The plant will be the most extensive ol
{ts kind on the Coast, and will conalst
of 5 main bullding 60x88 feet, two
stories high; dye house 40xG60, dry
cleaning house 25x30 fest and stables
30x50 feet.

Architect Fernand Parmentler has
prepared plans of an elght-room frame
bungalow to be bullt on the Golf tract
in the West Adams Helghts district for
George Stewart.” It will be complete In’
every respect. '

Architect C. E. Wolle of Pomona has
completed plans of a_ six-room frame
resldence for John A. Duffy, to bo bullt
on Boyle avenue near Seventh atreet,
It will have pine finish and all mddern
conveniences. '

Architect O. E. Goodnlo has prapared
plans for alterations and additlons to
o frame cottage on Montana strect for
George H. Post.

Architects Marsh & Rugsell are pre-
paring sketches of n two-storv eleven.
room frame residence to be bullt on the
Strand nesr Venlce for G. M. Joros.
The bullding will cost about $10,000,

Architect George Ricenrd has fnlshea
the designs for the extenslon of the
towers on the Catholle Cathedral at
Tucson, Ariz. When completed they
will attaln the helght of 178 feet.

Architects Morgan & Wualls are pre-
paring nlans of a three-atory brick ad-
dition G0x40 feet, to be bullt In the vear
of No. 513 South Broadway for the
Forve-Pettebona Co.

—h—

Building Permits.
Following are among the permits ls-

sued by the City Superintendent of

Buildings:

For Tyler & Co., o seven-room resi-
dence, at No. 3003 Harvard boulevard,
to' cost $2700.

For same owner, two six-room resi~
dences at Nos. 3007 and 3011 Harvard
boulevard, respectively, to cost 32500
each.

For Natalie R. Lustan, a slx-room
cottage, nt No. 2068 West Jefferron
street, to cost $2100.

For 'D, F, Hill, a twenty-five-room
frame rooming-house, at No. 822 San
Jullan sireet, to cost $3500,

For G. Herzghold, a ten-room resi-
dence, at No. 1020 West Twenty-fourth
street, to cost $2500.

For H. and Elizabeth Bickel, frame
flats, at No. 738 San Jullan street, to
cost $4000.

For Mrs. J. A. Bowden. a seven-
room resldence, at No. 1866 West Twen-
ty-first street, to cost $2200.

For Ingram & Briggs, a six-room cot-
tage, at No, 1722 West Twenty-second
street, to cost $2200.

For W. 8. Bond, an additional slory
to the two-story brick building at Nos,
169-473 East Third street, to cost $°00.

For J. Klatscher, a three-story frani=
apartment bullding, at No. 356 South
Flower street, to cost $3000.

For H. Schneider, a ten-roomn iesi-
dence, at No. 2063 Dorchester streeat, to
cost $4000.”

For Wesley Chapel Methodist Xpls-
copal Church, a concrete church oulld-
Ing, at Eighth and San Jullan s‘rects,
to cost $14.000.

For D. T. Althouse, n nine-room resi-
dence, at No. 634 South Bonnie Brae
atreet, to cost $4150.

For same owner, a nine-room resi-
dence, at No. 630 South Bonnle lirae
atreet, to cost $5260.

For Mrs. Ellzabeth Lelhy, a three-
story apartment butllding, at No. 87
Ceres avenue, to cost $7000.

For John L. Schroeder, a single-story
residence, at No. 1808 Van Ness ave-
nue, to_cost $2200.

For Frank Raynes, a  single-sto~
residence, at No 2723 Hobart boule-
vard, to cost $2100

For Mrs. Mansfleld, a two-storm
frame apartment building, at No. 129
South Grand avenue, to cost $10,0600,

For H J. Seifke, . reven-room resi-
doe_r‘\’gc at No. 1318 Kellam street, to cort

= 10

For Louise Mohn, alterations to
building at No 457 South Spring street,
to cost $3023.

Y/,
)
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ENDOF”
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'THE 'KING EDWARD HOTEL.

A New Hiotel, Magnificently Planned, on ]
the ‘Corner of Los Angeles and
Fifth Streets.

Thds 1s an Amerlean hotel, aithough
with' such a very English name, don't
you 'know. It is belng evected for a
Los' Angeles syndicxte by Architects
Parkinson & Rergstrom, Mr, Parkin-
son being largely Interested In the ven-
ture. “he building occuples a ground
spce of 100x140 fect, and is six storles
and basement, affording '150 guest
1o0oms, café, and all similar accessories
of the fine hotel. On the ground floor
will be three large stores. The bulld-
ing Is equipped with two fine passen-
ger elevhtors, and two freight cleva-
tors In the rear. There will be a tele-
phone in cvery room. The floors
throughout the housre -will be mosalc,
and the finish fumed onk. The lobby
will be elegantly finished in beautitul
marble, and the office counter, also of
marble, will be one of iure beauty,
The building Is abselutely fireproof,
theze will be no inside rooms, and it
will be run on the European plan The
handsome outlines and subatantial na-
ture of the bullding are clearly indi-
cated by the cut on this page of The
Time=. It §s said that the furnishings
of this hostelry will cost hot less than
$30,060  An interesting detadl of this
building i that all the materials go-
fng Into the structure wele made in
Los Augeles

Loz Angoles, from fts large tourist
travel now  practically covering the

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner.

whole year rodnd, is a city which re-
qulres unusual hotel -uccomniodations.
The hotels in, thls, city at..the.present
tlme, numerpus though- they are, are
every one filled to thelr utmbs€ capac-
fty It fa the aim of the buflder® bf thé
King Edward Hotel to_give‘the city
unother hostelry which will fully meet
ull the requirements of .fhstidious
travel. The fireproof construction ‘and
beautiful fintsh and hdndsome furnishe
ings promise to make, this a: very at-
tractive hotel, It'ls not a lagge one,
but {a indeed a handsome one. . [ts sit-
uation near to the gréat passenger de-
pot certainly would seem to be"s good
one to attract many tourists'arriving
by every, tiain in the city.

Hotel King Edward.

Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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HOTEL CHANGES HANDS.

Lease and Furnishings of ‘he King
Edward Sold for Fifty Thous-
and Dollars.

R. A. Rowan & Co. report the sale
of the lease and furnishings of the
King Edward Hotel, at Fifth and Los
Angeles streets, for R, F, Tousley t¢
Col. Edward Dunham and W. E
Smith, for a consideration of $30.000,
The buyers are well known locally,
Col. Dunham having been identified
with the hotel busi in Los Angel
since the days of the old Pico House.
He opened the Hotel Nadeau twenty
years ago, and has since been success-
ful in varfous other locations, Mr.
Smith has for fifteen years been with
J. R. Newberry, the grocer, but re-
cently went Into partnership with Col.
Dunham,

The bullding !s a modern fireproof
structure, containing 150 rooms, fully
furnished. This deal is merely 3 bonus
for the lease, and the sale of the fur-
niture. The rental is said to amount
to a considerable figure. The lease
extends for a period of eight years.
The owner of the structure is John

kinson, . .
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Theyve hung cxepe on the door

of the saloon—but this doesn’t measn

* that the men who formerly patron-
ized the saloon are dead.

NOT Goes Il mcan LRal LAE periects

1y normal Qestres and needs of Lhesc

;ln'z‘n bhave becn destroyed or satis-

Whatever there may bave Dbeen
adout the saloon that was Dbad,
there must have beez much thar
way good. It s inconcefvadle tha.
millions of men would daily have
been atiracted to the saloon {f
everything its cpponents said about
it and those who ran jt was true.

Let's glance 3t 2 few of the rea-
sons why the salocn won the aver-
age man—no doubt they will help
us formulate the features which
should be found in the saloon aub-
stitute.

The saloon was a normal institu-
tion—thers was nothing strained
about i, Men werent made oo
welcome. Few restraints were im-
posed upon them. Those who con-
ducted it made themselves as in-
conspjcuous as  possible. Thev
frankly accepted the perfoctly sound
business policy that “The customer
is always right.”

And those who patronized the fa.
Joon nmnever hud anything special
done for them. They paid for whar
they got. A b-cent plece placed a
man upon an cquallty with everv
other man in the place. And witn
hix S5-cent plece the workingman
could buy a glass of milk or soda-
water, ginger als or some other sof:
drink—and he was fust as wolcome
ax though he zpent his mcney fo~
dooze. /

- L3 -
L]

The apirit of democracy was
strongly developed. There was an
entire absence »f DAIronaKe Or Da-
ternalirm—things which 211 healthy-
minded men hate, There wae no
one around to bid a msn an em-
darrassing welceme or to speed him
& confusing farewell

Saloons usuillvy made YVery Trea-
sonable terms with labor unions.
singing focieties nand other social
and fratermal ocganizations for the
rental of the small halls they con-
trolled—no ma*er hat mayv have
Deen the hidden motives. Christen-
irx pa~tles, weddints and dancesx
espaclally among the immigranr
yopulation, w(re commonly held
back of saloons—mostly  becruse
shers was—and is—no other place
for them to go.

“Let no hunsry man paszs mv
door” rexds 2 rign  in front of n
Buffalo saloon, It was quite & com-
mon thing for a man who was
“broke™ to go Into a saloon—end 17
he didn’t 1ook lke & hobo or a bum,
he was invited to help himself tn
the free lunch, withour belng urged
to “go alow.”

Saloons wera  well-lighted and
warm in winter, and c¢ool and
comfortable in the surmer. ‘Thous-
ands of clerks and workinemen weve
able to xecurs thelr noondav lunches
4t 3 verv small charee, which wapa
far superior to the unattractive
™eale ferved  ‘n the chenap, dirty
restaurants {n the neighborhood.

- L]
-

The personality of the galoon-
keaner was an imnpartant factor Ha

had readilv availahle all sorts of In-

rmestic and social. He frequently
loaned money to his customers,
without setting up the “work-tesi”
| of the charity orsanization socicties,
and he often feund jobs for those
who »ere out of work.

17 the saloon nad been altogether
evi], there would be no need {6r a
substitute, but it had some most ex-
cellent features., which are yoing to
be missed in the average industrial
cogmunity. 1n view®of this, it Is
folly to take meriously the sitxtement
made by a saluon fighter that “No
one wants a substitute for Spanish
influenza, or fo- the dbubonic plaxue
—no morc does the saloon need a

substitute.”
. -

-

Workingmen won't write letters
to the papers or held mass meetings
making demaads for saloon sub-
stitutes, but if social and religious
workers who have helpcd put the
saloon out of business can’t sev the
necessity for furnixhing something
to take the pluce of the saloon.
then thelr sociul outlook 1s exceed-
ingly narrow.

But what? There's no pauacea—
there are no blue prints that outline
all the detalls.

But in general, h¢re are rome
principles that must bDe remem-
bered: Whatever s to take the
place of the saloon must have in it
the elements of democracy, or 8o~
clabdliity, of freedom of expression—
for in the szloon the workingmeoen
could “shake out his heart’ The
place must bes clean, attractive.
sanitary, and 1fie the saloon, cool
in summer and warm in winter. To
call it a “saloon substitute™ would
be fatal, As 2a rule, it should ba
run by red-blooded. whole-hearted,
strong-flated men—women s:ould
ordinarily keep out,

And here are some practical sug-
gestions, which must be adnpted to
local communities—remember thal
they won't worl; everywhere. Food
may be provided at a litzle above
cost It might be a good plan to
specialize upon and advertise & cer-
tain dish-—like Leef stew, or a good
quality of coflee.

Telrphonic sermice and dooths
ahould be instalied—not only booths
for private telephonic conversation,

byt private booths where a man
may talk contdentially with his
{riends.

The saloon substituto in a work-
fngman’a district mav run a bank-
ing department where the men may
cash thelr pey checks. ’

-

It may seem paradoxical o say
that men went to the ssloon to
drink water—yet many of them daid.
Therecfore, public drinking stands
or fountains should be provided.
Churches and schoolhouses should
be opened for labor-union meetings
and other rgatnerings of working-
men gnd thetr familles. Music is a
most appealing fealure, even wWhea
it i3 furnished only by a player-
piano or a ‘victrola—but why may
not concerts at which high-grade
music is regularly furnished be pro-
vided by the city in the districts it
which working people ltve? Out-
door. directed recreation in public
parks during the summer 13 sug-
d—for adullts as well as chil-

formaty Mitien) do-

dren.
It fx a fact that 10 per cent. of the
workingmen in Indu: centers

ater thelr lunches in maloons. Whe
may not employers of labor {urnisa
cheerful rooms for this purpuose—
aggin  without too much paternal-
ism™

We have not begun to appreciate
the value of ths drama for workinx
people. Com:inunity masques wiil
be found tremecndocsly useful anad
inspiring.

Loungine nnd rest rooms are es-
wential. Showe:r haths and swim-
ming pools would be greatly en-
Joyed. Open forums should be con-
ducted. Lecturn courses are valu-
able. Schoolhonuseg should be more
generzlly used for social! purposes
—they belong ts the people.

-

The movies are one bf the best
aubstitutes for the saloon. Nothing
else quite approaches them in this
respect. Tho motlon+picture houyn
DoOssesses many of the virtues of the
saloon and practically none of i*x
vicex. The workinsman doesn’t
need to “dress 1L.p” when he goes to
the movie—and he can take his
family. He may come and go in the
dark. The average flim iy inarecas~
ingly educatfonal wn character and
the dramatic story ordinarily has
an element of wmoral and ethical
teaching thal is valuable,

Reading-rooms may be eusily or-
ganized. Coffee-houses xre helpful,
DParticularly to men who work out-
doors. such as taxi-drivers, team-
aters, and dock ladorers. For these
WwWagons or morable stands will be
found useful. Soft drink parlore
and bdilliard-roo'ns comdined—under
competent management—mnmay be
succeasfully run. There is a foolish
prejudice in some quarters against
having billlard and pool tbles, sim-
Ply because they were formarly used
in the saloon. There )s nothing in-
herontly wrong !n these games. any
More than thers s in cards or
dominoes or——checkers. “Comfort
stations” or public toilets are one
of the greatest needs in the average
city—=Lacilities  formerly fornishod
only by the saloon. M

- -
L]

It would be an iceal thing if the
averafe saloon substitute could be
conducted by the municipality or
the State, for this would give it a
degree of permanence which s net
always possible when it is depend-
ent upon private philanthropy Cor
its malntenance——private philan-
thropy If ofton spasmodic,

Furthermore, when the city con-
ducts such rn exterprise it prompt-
Iv  ellminates the element of
Datrohage, becavses the average mar
would look upon ruch &Rn fnstitution
{n the same wav that he regards ths
pubdlic school which his children at-
tend. Ho feels that to a degree, a2
any Trate, he {s a taxpayer, and that
he, himsel?, {s helping to maintain
the enterprise in whose benefits he
is participating.

I 18 frankly admitted that the
best sudstitnte for the saloon is the
home—let thix vact be strongly em-
Dhasized—but millions of working-
men who formerly palronized the
faloon have no decent homeg to go
0. Tf, therefors, an attempt Is
mada to shift ~esponstbility foy es-
tahlishing raloon substitutes for any
Tea30n whatever, then there {s 2 ‘dis-
ting: reaponsibility for seelug to it
that workingmen'a homes are made
more lvabla—that they hate more .
sunllght, more space, ond that they
are given an odportunity to make
these homres more attractive, i
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HOLLENBECK HOME
BUYS ON FIGUEROA.

Annourcement was made yester-
tay by W S Young, superintendent
nt the Hollenbeck Home for Aged
People, of the purchase by the home
of the property at the soatheast
orner of Siateenth and Figueroa
wreots fraom R H OF Vanel for §53,--
90 The property, which 13 unim-
nroved, has a fren‘age of <eventy-
el fent an Thie Lman stper T with
a depth of 155 feet on Sixteenth
Toe T e o1vchil ¢ NS D b 2as
fnvestment and the property
Le le.sed  tor  bunlding pur-j

T

noses

TO ENLARGE HOTEL.

Wiscahlekon Inn at Redlands Bllysi
Residence; Plant Akerations.

[PFCT AL CORRINPONDFNCE T !

REDLANDS, Oct 23—A realty
deal which will have an important
I» a1in on the housing of the w.n-
tor tourist in Redlands has just
been consummated in the purchase
of what is gencrally known as the
Curtls Weils residence by Mrs F. S
Johnson of \Wissahickon Inn. The
¢éea' was made through the agency
ot George J. Fowler and the price
puc for the property was reported
at $8000. The former owner was
1. B Brown of Los Angeles.

Pocated in the residential district.
with a2 frontage of 180 feet on High-
land avenue and 200 feet on Cen-
ter street, and adjoining on the north
the property already owned hy Mrs
Johnenn, this purchase gives to the
Wissahlekon Inn additional accom-
modations. Jrs. Johason now owns
the entire frontag~ on Center street
between Walnut and Highland ave-
nues  Repairs and alterations will
Lte made on the Wells property,
wiich will bring it thoroughly up
to date.

OLIVE-STREET LEASE.

The recently completed one-storv
buflding at 939 South Ohve street
has been leased to the Callfornia-
Camel Corporation, dealers in a ce-
vice which prevents automobile ra-
dlators {rom running dry The build-
ing Is owned bv the Stillwell Auto
Corporation The California-Came!
Corpointlon, of which P. B Wrizht
.« pre {dent, has leased the entire
huilding, but it iy plinned to sublet
such <pace aw i3 not needed by the
firm to Cealers {n auto accessorics

“The trin ction was handled by
Georuze Drookwell, manager of the
busiress property department of

'8 ronz, McGrath & Selover, who rep-
‘lru-wn:vd both parties

i SAITE OF SCHOOL LANDS.

| A public auction of 143,000 acres
lof srite school 1ands lying in Inyo
,County w.l be held at the Court-
yhovee ain Indepe &onee on Thursday,
[ Novenher 4 W0 & Kinasbury, Sur-
‘\'e\'r)r-uv neral of California. will pro-
Ivide @ duseripuon of the lands to
{;.oxrw»n\' who are interested in the
s1le

|the following recent sales

NEW INDUSTRY HERE.

—

Trigus Mcthod of Preserving Fish
Embodicd in Imcal Plant.

—

A new plant for the preserving of
fish by the Frigus method has been
opencd at 136 Central avenue under
the name of the Southern Pacitic
Fish Company. The plant was es-
tablished here under the supervi-
sion of Otto C. Erickson, commis-
stoner of the Frigus Company of
Norway in the United States and
Canada.  Under this method, the
fish are frozen in brine, reduced to
4 tempeorature of zero, which flows
over the cases In which the sh are
pached as soon as they are taken
from the water The operation is
entirely automatic, and throuxh this
method a saving of timeo and labor
is effecteq, it is claimed.

The patents on thc method are

cwned by tke Frigus Company,
which is establishing piants
throughout the world. The first

plant to be established here has a
capacity of seventy-two tons per
day. It is planned by Mr Erlckson
to establish additioral plants at San
Pedro, a plant-at San D'ego, nnd
one on a vessel which will ply bhe-
twveen Los  Angeles and Mexico,
along the west coast of Lower Calte
fornia.

GRIFFITH PARK TFRRACE.

Rich and Garlock report the fol-
lowing sales of lots in Griffith Park
Teriace tract: To W, E. Crowell,
$3475; Frederick Baker, $2525, Roy
{foagland, §3000; Mark Harrls,
$3700; Harley Hitchcock, $3500; E.
‘T Tulford, flve lots, 3$9330: C. J
Lyman, $2000; R. H. Woods, $2000,
C. G. Wedell, $3000; W. A. Oalhe,
$3000; Earl R Holland, $3300; C.
H  Braden, 3500; E FErickson
$3750° T Hussey, $1250: Ruth Jack-
son, $2130, E. G. Johnson, four
lots, $3700. G. D. Leach. $1800; W
E Branch, $2875: J. A Pery, $22753,
Victor Schertz'nger. two lots, $2030;
J. Moore $1230 .
1 S —

VINEYARDS SOLD.

{SPECTAL CORR™SPONDINCRLY
LINDSAY Oct 23.—E K Tells
has purchased ten acres planted to
Thompsrn seedless zrapes from Mrs.
Nellie Perry The property is s'tize
ated aeross the road and east of Mr
Wells's preasent grove The J R.i
Chambless grove four miles south- |
west ‘x town has been sold to Mra,
Faucle Gunderson Mr and Mrs.
& I. Little who recentlv sold their!
property on Bellah atenue Intend
to make a short visit In Porterville..
after which they will move to fIv-
ward to make their future home.
Mr little wiil enter the poultry
business in the nnrthern city.

LAFAYETTE SQTUARE. i
Crenshaw & Swmailes, general!
agents for Lafavette Square, repor:
in that
subdivicion To Cmmeline H Hor-
dan, Iot on Virzinia Road, $4000:
E O Orchard, lot on Virginia Road.
$7000: Walter £ Burke, lot on Vir-
ginia Road, $2830: Philip L. Bixby.
lot on Virginia Road, $4570, M. S

Robbin, lot on  Wellington Road,
33660; Virzinia Thomson, lot on
Buckingham Road, $4230; J T

Hurst, lot on Buckinghar Road,
§2880: De Harte Luce, lot on Vie-
toria Drive, $2900; W. H Tobln, iot
on Wellington Road $5000; Georgzina
C. Pratt, lot on Wellington Road,
$1660: P. M Green, lot on Virginia
Road, $£6000: Christie Bell Collins,
lot on Victorla Drive, $3000,

NEW BROADWAY STORES.

A one-story building, to contain
elzht stores;” will be eracted on the
northwest corner of Eleventh and
Broadway by C. M. Nutting, owner of
the property The bullding wiil
have a frontage of 190 fect on
Broadway, with a depth varyinz
from forty to fifty feet, Accord-
{nz to the plans which have been
prepared  tha structure will cost
about $20,000.

——e
BUSINESS LEASFS,

H. L Suydam, realty broker, re-
ports the following businese prop-
erty leases: J. Philbrook, to
Aero Rattery Company. upper floors
of buiflding at 227 East Seventh
street, for manufacturing auto sup-
plies: Minnia Arhbogast to Los An-
geles Druz Supply Company, store
at 311 Commercial street, for manu-

facturing drugs; C. M. L. Nelson zo'

G Whomes, store at 402 Aliso
street, for manufacturing De Luxe
auto glass windows; Citrons Drux
Company to the Glover Company.
store at 903 Sunset Boulevard for
wholesale druga: C. ™. Scott to J.
Cralg, store at 319 Jackson street,
for manufacturing Zendjes Treat-
ment drugs, E. C. Lewls to Cablin
Baverage Campany, for manufactur-
ing soft drinks: D. W. Ferguson to
J. Gonzales, store at 659 North
Broadway, for restaurant; Judas
. Boas Company to Sam Sing. bulld-

Los Angeles Times (1886-1922); Oct 24, 1920; ProQuest Historical Newspapers: Los Angeles Times
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for laundry, R. F. Vogel to the
Chocolate Spectalties Company, store
and basement at 213 Temple struet,
for manuficturing candy. Germain
Buil'iing Company to the O B. U.
Club, hall at 224 South Spring street:
May Mott Smith to Vaccaro zand
Kerts, loft at 223 West First street,
for manufacture of clnthing, Henry
Lord to Geflen and Muller. store in
Lord's Building for clothing., HiN
Realty Company to Max Schlarman,
store at 230 North San Pedro street,
for burlap sacks.

[

KING EDWARD HOTIL.

An Interest in the King Edward
Hotel Company, which operatey the
King Edward Hotel at 119 East
Fifth street, has been purchased by
Thomas L. Dodge, formerly of De-
troit, Mich AMr. Dodie, an expe-
rfenced hotel man, wiil take over
active manazement on November 1,

LACKS JOB; ENDS LIFE.

Despondent  Man  Shoots  Himself
Wuen Wife Is Anay at Beach.

" Despondent because he was out

1 0f work, Edward Allen, a book-
;koepnr and stenographer, shot and
killed himself yesterday on the
porehh of his home at 232 West
Flighty-elghth  strect. He waited
luntf his wife had departed on a
trip to one of the beach cities and
then, while scantily clad, shot him-
s¢lf In the stomach. An investiga-
ttion was made by Deputy Sherlffs

| Lips and Anderson and the bhody
lvs.m ordercd taken to the morzue of
t

the Utrer Undertaking Company,
» Forty-elghth street and  DMoneta
v:l.Vl':Xluu.
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INGLEWOOD
BANK PAIR’S
TRIAL SET

Fight Lost by Netzel and
Krabbenschmidt to Have
Indictments Dismissed

Winnping dismissal of a perjury
charge against them contained in
an indictment charging grand theft,
conspiracy and violation of the
State banking laws, Arthur F. Net-
zel, former president of the Pirst
Exchange State Bank of Inglewood,
and Henry Krabbenschmidt, vice-
president, yesterday lost their fight
to have the ctment thrown out
of cowrt on } technicalities and
after pleading not guilty to the
charges were ordered to stand trial.

Judge Craig . the case to
Superior Judge ’s court and
fixed February 14, next, as the date
of trial

The two are accused in the true
bill of having violated the State
banking laws by borrowing money
for themselves from the bank which
they once headed, through dummy
borrowers. The defendants also are
accused of outright theft in an-
other section of the indictment
which asserts that they converted
approximately $10,000 to their own
use.

Jury Will Get
Karl Wurzburg
Case Today

Witk the final rebuttal argu-
ment to be presented to a jury in
Superior Judge Burnell's court this
morning by Dep. Dist.-Atty.
L'Esperance, the fate of Karl Wurz-
burg, former secretary of the Hun-
saker Pinance Company and the
Consolidated Finance and Holding
Company, today will be placed in
the hands of the jurors.

Wurzburg is accused of conspiracy,
grand theft and violation of the
Corporate Securities Act in con-
nection with transactions which he
consummated while associated with
the two firms.

Melted Clock
Damages Won

It was not Mrs. Rebecca Kanter’s
fauly that a box of matches on the
stove caught fire and melted a
“mother-of-pearl clock studded with
forty-four rhinestones,” she told
Municipal Judge Scott yesterday.
Mrs. Kanter, sued for $12.50 by Mrs,
Esther Diamond, roomer who owned
the clock, testified through Max
Richman, court bailiff, sworn in as
Yiddish interpreter by John Dugan,
court clerk.

Judge Scott, however, ruled Mrs.
Kanter's carelessness was responsi-
ble and ordered her to pay the
$12.50.

Probation Given
in Security Case
Edwin E. Elston, 67-year-old for-

mer head of & Long Beach msanu-
tacturing concern, who pleaded

County Jall, whick wss then sus-
pended.

Y

AMP-POSTS AS
GARDENS QUT
Park Boud;oﬂl,ldu of

New Mexican for City’s
Beauty Not Feasible

A suggestion by De Witt
Wise of Sorroco, N. M., for
beautifying Los Angeles with
plants growing from lighting
standards as in Allentown, Pa.,
is not fessible, the park board
yesterday notified the City
Council, recipient of the pro-
posal.

The Sorroco may's idea, it
appears, is a “hot house on
every lamp-post for Los An-
geles.” Park Superintendent
Shearer explained there is too
much warm air in summer to
make it a success, as the sun's
rays would mean a lot of
watering, a mess under every
lamp-post and a force of men
to cultivate the aerial gar-
dens,
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Pasadena Rose
Parade Scenes
Shown in Films

Magnificent views of the annual

Tournament of Roses parade at Pas-
adena, which held hundreds of thou-
sands of spectators enraptured the
day after New Year's, feature the
current issue of the Times-Univer-
sal Newsreel, now showing at lead-
ing Southern California theaters.
They are followed by shots of the
Rose Bowl! football game, in which
the Trojan ran roughshod  over
the Pittsburgh Panthers. XBoth
events are described vividly by Gra-
ham McNamee, the talking report-
er.

Other scenes in the reel depict
the late Calvin Coolidge on his
Northampton estate shortly before
his death, the Sino-Japanese flare-
up at Shanhaikwan, the intercolle-
giate ski-jumping contest at Lake
Placid, N. Y., and the junior na-
tional pocket billiards champion-
ship contests at New York,

The schedule may be obtained by
calling Newsreel Book at REpublic
3171 and asking about Newsreel No.
108, Vol. IV.

Woman Dies in

Fall From Roof

Injuries suffered when she leaped
or fell from the roof of a three-,
story apartment bullding yesterday
caused the death of Mrs. Maggie:
Obernesser, 76 years of age, of 1667
West Adams street.

While her husband, Jacob Ober-
nesser, 76, was dinner the.
woman left her home, saying she
was going to visit a neighbor near:
by. When she failed to return the:
husband, searching, discovered her
unconscious form. She was taken
to the Georgia-street Receiving!|
Hospital for emergency treatment,
and died there last night.

STILLWELL 1 Arsenal Stolen

BUYS HOTEL |

From Attorney

DOWNTOWN‘ Two shotguns, s rifie and three

King Edward Furnishings
Taken Over for Reported
Consideration of §150,000

Purchase of the furnishings of the
King Edward Hotel located at the
northeast corner of Fifth and Las
Angeles streets by the Stillwell Ho-
tel Company for a reported consid-
eration of $150,000, was announced
yesterday by E. W. Cason, hotel
broker.

The furnishings were bought from
Mrs, Thomas Dodge. The new

management also signed a new ten-

year lease with John Parkinson,
owner of the property.

The King Edward Hotel was con-
structed by the present owner more
than twenty years ago and is of
six stories, containing 160 rooms, It
was the flrst fireproof building
erected!nthedty!orhotelpm‘-

It was announced that the new
operators will make extensive im-
provements in the lobby, stores and
other parts of the King Edward
and buy new equipment. The Still-
well Hotel Company formerly op-
erated the Stillwell Hotel at 838
South Grand avenue, containing
250 rooms, and the El Rey Hotel,
Sixth and San Pedro streets, con-
tainipg 600 rooms, and also other
hotel properties.

Old-Time Bar
Found in Raid
of Dry Agents

Federal prohibition agents discov~
ered yesterday what they described
to Federal Commissioner Head as
an ‘“honest-to-goodness” barroom,
equipped with all the old-fashioned
trimmings, when they raided a store-
room at 216 West Fourteenth street,
and arrested H G. Bowen, the as-
serted owner and operator.

In their report wo Prohibition Ad-
ministrator Peters the agents listed
the seizure of twelve gallons of
whisky, forty-one bottles of beer, a
fourteen-foot bar, back bar and the
usual layout of glassware. The so-
called barroom was located in the
rear of the storeroom. The windows
were blocked off with pasteboard so
that persons on the outside could
not see what was going on in the
room, but those within the room
could look out op the street.

AUTOMOBILE COURT
INCENDIARY SOUGHT

Sheriff's investigators vyesterday

were seeking a3 man suspected by
them of being responsible for an
early morning fire which originated
in & car parked in an automobile
court at 2055 East Seventy-sixth
street, and resulted in damage esti-
mated at $600 when ot destroyed the
vehicle and four umits of the court
and spread to an adjoining house,
according to a Sheriff’s report.

Tevolvers, whose total value was
placed at about $200, were stolen

+ during the absence of the family

from the home of George C. John-
son, attorney, at T454 Hillside ave-
nue, according to a report made to
the police yesterday by his wife,
Mrs, Helen H. Johnson.

Johnson, who represented the
Women's Christian Temperance Un-
lon and a special citizens’ commit~
tee in the recent abortive investiga-
tion of police vice-squad activities
by the City Council, last November

reported the theft of data concern-
ing the investigation from his down-
town office.
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Intermittent ¢
Irrigation Rate
Cut Approved

A reduction of three-tenths of &
cent per 100 cubic feet in the ine
termittent irrigation rate of the
city was approved yesterday by
the Board of Water and Power
Commissioners. The new rate of
one and five-tenths cents per 100
cubic feet affects all water supplied
by gravity flow system.

Approximately 50,000 acres of
farm land in the San Fernando
Valley will be affected by the re-
duced rate, according to H. A, Van
Norman, chief engineer and gen-
eral manager of the Bureau of
Water Works and Supply.

The former rate was one
eight-tenths cents.

and
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BEER DEMANDS
SHOW DECLINE

Hope Expressed Supply Will
Meet City’s Thirsts

High Prices and Poor Brew
Discourage Customers

Police Commission Revokes
One Permit Issued

Perceptibly lessening of popular
demand yesterday was seen as the
medium which will balance the sup-
ply of beer with demand within the '
‘next few weeks.

' While there was still an urgent
‘call for bottled and tap brew ves-
terday. it was far below the peak

'demand reached the first two days
after the advent of legal beer last
week,
' High prices and. in some in-
stances, poor quality of beer were
|two factors lessening demand yes-
terday. ‘The hard struggle neces-
'Sary to get even a small quantity
|of beer through ordinary channels
| was also discouraging many custo-
| mers.

BEER FROM EAST

Importers of middle-western and

eastern beer also declared that their
source of supply will ease the situ-
ation with shipments late this week
and early next. One large agency
expected a ten-box-car consignment
to arrive tomorrow or the nex: day.
Some beer was received here yester~
day from a Utah brewery and more
' was declared on the way.

The Police Commission yesterday
revoked the beer and wine sale per-
'mit granted to the King Edward
| Grill, 129 East Fifth street, on the
' ground that the restaurant had not
been operated at the location as
ilong as the commission was first
'informed. The Tacoma Brewing
Company, which held two wholesale
permits, canceled one at 564 South
Central avenue. M. L. Burton can-
celed his wholesale permit for 702
East First street. The commission
,has not yet filled these vacancles
ifrom the 300 applications still on
file,

SHAW RAPS ORDINANCE

Frank L. Shaw, chairman of the
Board of Supervisors, and candidate
Tor Mayor, yesterday issued a state-
ment attacking the local Gandler
ordinance, which restricts to 175
downtown establishments the right
to sell beer., ss diseriminatory, re-
: strictive and inducive of favoritism.
! “Laws which severely hamper the
merchandising of a legal commodity
are not in harmony with American
customs of free and unrestricted
trade,” Shaw said in a statement.
*The surest way to bring back the
unwanted saloon is to restrict the
sale of legal beverages to a limited
pumber.”
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through the streets of Los Angeles to
be reminded of how much John Park-
inson in his lifetime contributed to the
city that grew up under his hand.

OHN PARKINSON
There are many ways by which a
man can win a place among the chosen
few whose names will be engraven in
the records of an era their genius helpad
to construct.

He who can materialize his creative
imagination in such visible proofs of
his technical sklll as designing the great
structures and prominent buildings from
which a city derives its reputation for
form and beauty has certainly en-
shrined his spirit in a permanent monu-
ment. No poet or philosopher, no must-
cian or palnter has left behind a more
lasting proof of his genius than has the
architect who designed any of the
world's famous edifices from the Parthe-
non and the Taj Mahal to the Stras-
bourg Cathedral and the Capitol at
Washington.

In this illustrious company of build-
ers John Parkinson of Los Angeles
earned a distinction that death can-
not obliterate. The passing years will
bring ever added proof of how much
the city owes to his vision and his
artlstry. In a modern age of business
and industry he won a reputation as
one of America’s foremost business
building architects and designers, Los
Angeles is an example of how well he
adapted the princlples of beauty and
truth in architecture to the commercial
needs of a city that was facing the fu-
ture without being oblivious of its past.

The plans for the new Union Pas-
senger Terminal, on which he was work-
ing at the time of his death, are char-
ncteristic of his power to combine beauty
and utility in a structure that should
serve the present and at the same time
e essentially a part of the Los Angele:
traditton. In all John Parkinson de-
signed more than $100,000,000 of strue-
tures for adorning the city including
such outstanding examples as the
Memorial Coliseum, the City Hall, Bul.
Inck's, the Title Insurance and Trus!
Bullding and the Pacliic Gas and Elec:
tric Bullding,

Future cltisens have only to wall
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(deceased December 9, 1935)

NAME Parikinson, John
PUBLIC OFFICES HELD (DATE)
CITY:
Lunicipal art Comnission Nov, 23, 1903 -
Jec. 13, 1910
COUNTY:
STATE

State Board of architecture, 1919-1939

FEDERAL.:

CIVIC ACTIVITIES:



BUSINESS OR PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

architect - 4ll allied arts and sciences
 City and state official

PORTRAIT:
ATTACHED OR ENCLOSED IN ENVELOPE: none

PORTRAITS APPEARING ELSEWHERE (DATES)

Portrait Index



ANECDOTES AND PERSONAL IMPRESSIONS:



SOURCES OF INFORMATION:
BOOKS:

See other page

NEWSPAPERS AND PERIODICALS:

Los Angeles Times

PERSONAL INTERVIEW: none: filled in bicgraphy form,
1910

INTERVIEWED BY:
DATE OF INTERVIEW

liarch 25, 1938

Form 145
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The Los Augeles Jublic Library
Focal BHistory Collection
Biography

NAME Pgriinson, dJohn (deceased december 9,
. 1935)
Occupation _ srchitect
Address
Birth (Date and . ) 3 )
i rt Place) Decembar 12, 1861, Scarton, imgland

FATHER  Thomas Parkiuson

. (Date and
Birth  'place) 1818, Ingland

If Deceased, When 1g38

MOTHER liary ann Bibby

. (Date and
Birth  “place) 1816, Sngland

If Deceased, When 1904
1st wife: ieta Catharine

IF MARRIED, TO WHOM Bregienfaeld.
end wife: XFlorence rumaer
. (Date and . ‘ . -
Birth of Same  'place) 1st wife: 1862, Tew York,l.Y.

If Deceased, When  1g4 wife: Liareh 10, 1922

When Married 18t wife: December 25, 1889, apa,

onra—agi-Ffa-. Aanond VA 1G9 (A 'f
[ 4V S | e mpn W g AL £y LTy \ vl L 3

CHILDREN (Married Names of Daughters) “°8 ~13¢168
By first wife:

Donuld Berthold

ilary Dorothea: lrs. Trent




TITLES OF BOOKS, ARTICLES, MUSIC, OR OTHER
-~ CREATIVE WORK

(In the case of printed matter, please give date and publisher; of periodical publica-
tions also name of magazine and date.)

ilectric, hydraulic, and pneunatic machinery

on which he held six patents.

architectural works

REVIEWS, CRITICISMS, AND OTHER BIOGRAPHICAL
'~ NOTICES

(Please note printed matter concerning yourself or your work, We would appreciate
any such material you may send, clippings, reviews, portrait.)

Burdette, Jreater Los Angeles and bouthern Cal-
. - ifornia, p 66
Jolfe, lLien of “allfornla, p 424

Hunt, California and Californians, vol 1V, p 91 -

licGroarty, Los augeles From the lountains to the
Sea, vol 11, p 2<l




ANCESTORS OF DISTINCTION OR LOCAL INTEREST

(Please include names of local interest as “forty-niners,” or any one connected with
the affairs or development of the state or city, as officials, professional men, mer-
cants, etc.)

Cathedral: Robert Parkinson who laid out the

grounds of Liount Vernon for George ashington,

was great grandfather of subject.

EDUCATION (Schools, Colleges, Degrees, Etc.)

5t. Luxes School, lLiechanics Institute, Bolton

Zngland

CLUBS, LEARNED SOCIETIES, ETC.

California Club; Jonathan Club; University Club;

_Hn;Qn,£Qagnﬂ_Qlnb,_han_Eranclsco~_8r2r9rﬁr——gesfnn-
geles Country Club; american Institute of architects

RELIGIOUS DENOMINATION =piscopal

POLITICAL AFFILIATIONS 3gpnublican

RESIDENCE IN CALIFORNIA SINCESan Francisco 1885
Los anceles, 1894




SKETCH

(Please make this as full as possible, giving business affiliations, positions of honor or trust
with dates if possible.) .

John Parkinson was born December 12, 1861,
in Scarton, ingland. -He was educated in his na-
tive city, first at S5t. Lukes School and later at
liechanics's Institule, from which he Teceived a
dinloma in engineering and architecture in 1882,

He cume to San Francisco from :ingland in 1885

ige —Begiming—in—1888
ir. “ar 1nson began the practloe of arcnltecture.
T Je —designed

in the Unlted otates.

from Napa he removed to Seattle, washington,
in 1889 where he continued the prwotlce of archi-
tecture and building construction. The Butler
Block, and the Pacific Office Building of Seattle
are among his early works. He also served as archi-
tect to the Seattle School Board, designing several
school DUJ.J.O.lIlP‘b T that 'GlmG.

: ES% Iy ¢ T wos
angeles., In his forty years in “os angeles he was

=
- 5 £

for many important structures throughout the coun-

_ngmgxclaluhu;lglug_de-
signer. A number of the city's most promirent edi-
fices are his conceptions.

Around 1905 he formed a partnership with Mr.
Ldwin Bergstrum and ITater with his son, under the
flrm name of John and Donald B. Parclnson archi-

GBUFS.

; 3y ife
durlng h1s earlier years here. ‘When the kuniecipal

Art Commission was created by ordinance in 19023 he

was appointed a member of the first board., He
served from November 23, 1903 to Decembsr 13, 1910,

and then resigned.

His Iast work was on plans for the city s new
49,000,000 Union Passenger Terminal, in the first

stages of construction at tThe time of his death.
He died Tecemper 9, 1925 _at his home 1in Santa
Monica.

WORKS CRUGRESS ADMINISTRATION PRQJECGT



Par<inson, John
Supplement to Sketch

Partial list of structures of which lir., Pariin-
son was architect or associate architect.

Administrative Building, University of Southern Calif
Alexandria Hotel
angeles Hotel
arcade Depot
Blackstone Building
Braly Building
Broadway Department Store
Bullocizs Department itore and annex
California Club
Central Building
Chamber of Commerce Building
City Hall
Citizens Ilational Ban: Building
Currier Building (his first in Los Angeles)
HEdison Building
Federal Reserve Building
Prost Building
Grant Building
Hotel liaryland, Pasadena
Hotel Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah
Johnson Building
Laughlin Building (first fire-proof building in L.A.)
Los Angeles Athletic Club
Los angeles Gas and Zlectrie Building
Los angeles liemorial Coliseum
Pacific Mutual Building
Rosslyn Hotel and Annex
- Security National Bank Building
Title Insurance Building
Title Guarantee Building
Trust and Savings Building
Union Oil Building
Union Depot, Ogden, Utah
Union Passenger Terminal
Union Trust Building
Washington Building



THE LOS ANGELES PUBLIC LIBRARY
LOCAL HISTORY COLLECTION

BIOGRAPHY
September 6, 1924.
FAME John Parkinson
Occupation Architect
Address 1201 San Vicente Blvd., Santa lionica
Birth

(date & place) Dec. 12, 1861, Scorton, England

FATHER Thomas Parkinson
Birth
(date & place) Ehgland 1818
I1f deceased,
when 1888

MOTHER Mary A. Blbby
Birth
(date % Place) England about 1820
1f deceaded,
when 1904

1F MARRIED, TO WHOM Meta B. Breckenfeld
Birth of same
(date & place) New York, 1862
I1f deoceased,
when ¥March 10, 1922
When married 1889 December 25th.

MARRIED AGAIN : Florence Gumaer
April 4, 1923.

CHILDREN (married names of daughters)
Mary Dorothea Trent

SONS
Donald B. Parkinson

PITLES OF BOOKS, ARTICLES, MUSIC, OR OTHER CREATIVE WORK.
Architect.
REVIEWS, CRITICISM AND OTHER BIOZRAPHICAL NOTICES.
Nothing
ANCESTORS OF DISTINCTION OR LOCAL INTEREST.
Ancestors generally have been as follows, some Engineers, some in the ministry

of the Church of England, some horticulturists. His great grandfather, Robert
Parkinson, laid out the grounds of Mount Vernmon for George Washington.



EDUCATION, (SCHOOLS, COLLEGES, DEGREES ETC):

Cormmon school and Mechanies Institute, Bolton, England.
Diploma in architecture and structural design from the Mechanics Institute, Bolton,
England.

CLUBS, LEARNED SOCIETIES, ETC:

Los ingeles Country Club,
Californlia Club
Member American Institute of Architects.
L. A. Elks
POLITICAL AFFILIATIONS:

Repiblican.
SKETCH

Came to United States from England in 1883, west to Winnepeg, Manitoba
was there for a few months, spent the balance of '83 and '84 in Minneapolis, Minn,
returning to angland in the winter of '84 and going to San Franeisco in March 1885,
Started in business as architect in Napa, California in 1888, designed building
there for the Bank of Napa. Left Napa in Jan. 1889 for Seattle, remaining in
Seattle until March 1894, there designed the Butler Hotel, Pacific Building,
Pacific School Bullding, and a number of school buildings throughout the state.

Was Architect for the Seattle School Board in 1892 and 1893. Arrived in Los Angeles
in March 1894 and in that clty since. Designed the first fire-proof steel frame
building in Southern Clalifornia, the Laughlin Building on Broadway,- Since then

he or his firm have designed many of the prominent buildings including:

Office Bulldings: The Hibernian Building, L. A.
Securlty Building L. A.
Title Insi Bldg. L. 4.
Citizens National Bank
Building L. A.
Union 011l Building Le Ao
Central Building L. A.
Washington Bldg. L. 4.
Pacific Mutual Bldg Le Ao
Hotels: Rosslyn Hotel Le Ao
Rosslyn Annex L. A,
Alexandria Hotel L. A.
Hotel Utah, Sale lake City, Utah.
Department Stores: Broadway Dept. Store Los .4ingeles
Bullock's "
Blackstones "

Warehouse Buildings: Wholesale Terminal group of Buildings, L. A.

Clubs: L. 4. Athletic Club Los Angeles
School Buildings Administration Bldg.,
for U. S. C. Los Angeles



LOS ANGELES COLISEUM: seating capacity 75,000 L.d.

The Los Angeles Coliseum 1is the largest Coliseum in exlstance at this time, having
75,000 numbersd seats and a capacity which would include an avallable space to ac-
commodate 75,000 more spectators.

The above repressents a few of the buildings designed by John Parkinson
as Architect, or his firm.

The total value of buildings designed from 1894 to 1924 aggregates an
excess of sixty millions of dollars and comprises many of the City's most prominent
buildings.






ASK THE DUST

But I was desolate and sick with an old passion,

Yes, all the time, because the dance was long;

I have been faithful to thee, Camilla, in my fashion.
Arturo Bandin.

I sent it by telegraph, proud of it, watched the telegraph clerk read it,
beautiful poem, my poem to Camilla, a bit of immortality from Arturo to
Camilla, and I paid the telegraph man and walked down to my place in
the dark doorway, and there I waited. The same boy floated by on his bi-
cycle. I watched him deliver it, watched Camilla read it in the middle of
the floor, watched her shrug and rip it to pieces, saw the pieces floating
to the sawdust on the floor. I shook my head and walked away. Even the
poetry of Ernest Dowson had no effect upon her, not even Dowson.

Ah well, the hell with you Camilla. I can forget you. I have money.
These streets are full of things you cannot give me. So down to Main
Street and to Fifth Street, to the long dark bars, to the King Edward Cel-
lar, and there a girl with yellow hair and sickness in her smile. Her name
was Jean, she was thin and tubercular, but she was hard too, so anxious
to get my money, her languid mouth for my lips, her long fingers at my
trousers, her sickly lovely eyes watching every dollar bill.

“So your name is Jean,” I said. “Well, well, well, a pretty name.”
We'll dance, Jean. We'll swing around, and you don’t know it, you
beauty in a blue gown, but you're dancing with a freak, an outcast from
the world of man, neither fish, fowl, nor good red herring. And we drank
and we danced and we drank again. Good fellow Bandini, so Jean called
the boss. “This 1s Mr. Bandini. This 1s Mr. Schwartz.” Very good, shake
hands. “Nice place you got, Schwartz, nice girls.”

One drink, two drinks, three drinks. What’s that you're drinking
Jean? I tasted it, that brownish stuff, looked like whiskey, must have
been whiskey, such a face she made, her sweet face so contorted. But it
wasn’'t whiskey, it was tea, plain tea, forty cents a slug. Jean, a little liar,
trying to fool a great author. Don't fool me, Jean. Not Bandini, lover of
man and beast alike. So take this, five dollars, put it away, don’t drink

2 hrs and 30 mins left In book 40%



ASK THE DUST

Jean, just sit here, only sit and let my eyes search your face because your
hair is blonde and not dark, you are not like her, you are sick and you are
from down there in Texas and you have a crippled mother to support,
and you don’t make very much money, only twenty cents a drink, you've
only made ten dollars from Arturo Bandini tonight, you poor little girl,
poor little starving girl with the sweet eyes of a baby and the soul of a
thief. Go to your sailor boys, honey. They don’t have the ten dollars but
they've got what I haven’t got, me, Bandini, neither fish, fowl nor good
red herring, goodnight Jean, goodnight.

And here was another place and another girl. Oh, how lonely she
was, from away back in Minnesota. A good family too. Sure, honey. Tell
my tired ears about your good family. They owned a lot of property, and
then the depression came. Well, how sad, how tragic. And now you work
down here in a Fifth Street dive, and your name is Evelyn, poor Evelyn,
and the folks are out here too, and you have the cutest sister, not like the
tramps you meet down here, a swell girl, and you ask me if I want to
meet your sister. Why not? She got her sister. Innocent little Evelyn
went across the room and dragged poor little sister Vivian away from
those lousy sailors and brought her to our table. Hello Vivian, this is Ar-
turo. Hello Arturo, this is Vivian. But what happened to your mouth, Vi-
vian, who dug it out with a knife? And what happened to your bloodshot
eyes, and your sweet breath smelling like a sewer, poor kids, all the way
from glorious Minnesota. Oh no, they're not Swedish, where did I get
that 1idea? Their last name was Mortensen, but it wasn’t Swedish, why
their family had been Americans for generations. To be sure. Just a cou-
ple of home girls.

Do you know something?—Evelyn talking—Poor little Vivian had
worked down here for almost six months and not once had any of these
bastards ever ordered her a bottle of champagne, and I there, Bandini, I
looked like such a swell guy, and wasn’t Vivian cute, and wasn’t it a
shame, she so innocent, and would I buy her a bottle of champagne?
Dear little Vivian, all the way from the clean fields of Minnesota, and not
a Swede either, and almost a virgin too, just a few men short of being a

? hrs and 31 mins left in book 41%
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“Dry”’ Los Angeles and Its
Liquor Problems in 1924

by Kenneth D. Rose

From 1911 to 1914 while attending law school I had to wait
late at night, when the law library closed, on the corner of First
and Main Streets in Los Angeles for the interurban to my
suburban home. Indelibly impressed on my mind is the fact
that scarcely a night — never a week — went by without several
drunken men reeling past me from the five saloons near that
corner. No one noticed them. Now one such incident would
cause headlines.!

Mabel Walker Willebrandt

Assistant Attorney General

of the United States, 1921-1929

Dismayed by the number of crimes of violence committed in
Los Angeles last year, reported to have outnumbered those in
the whole of France, many of our citizens pray piously to God
Jor a better city . .. Many among us sincerely believed we were
abolishing crime when we closed the saloons. Yet the number
of hold-ups last year was double that of the years when the
saloons were open. This ts not offered as an argument against
prohibition. We have no proof that, if the saloons had been
open, the number would not have been greatly increased. It is
simply offered as evidence that we have not yet found the root of
the evil.

Editorial, Los Angeles Times,
5 April 1924

failing. On all fronts, prohibition’s bright promise of a
liquor-free United States was beset by problems, with
liquor smuggling and rumrunning growing to epidemic propor-
tions. In fact, the rumrunning problem had become so acute by
1924 that the U.S. government extended its territorial waters

B Y 1924 PROHIBITION IN AMERICA’S CITIES was
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Historical Society of Southern California

from three miles to twelve miles in an attempt todeal with the
situation. The immense profits to be made from selling illegal
alcohol (or protecting those who did) had created widespread
graft among low-salaried policemen and prohibition agents. The
nation’s courts were in a state of near chaos as thousands of
prohibition cases clogged court calendars and created backlogs
stretching into years. Prohibition had taken on class distinc-
tions by 1924, as it was becoming obvious that prohibition was a
law which the poor more or less had to obey out of economic
necessity, while the rich drank with impunity.? (Many of
America’s well-to-do had simply stock-piled large quantities of
liquor in their private cellars before prohibition went into effect
— a move perfectly legal under the Volstead Act, but a luxury
which the poor couldn’t afford.) But worst of all was the scourge
of liquor violence which cursed every large American city. The
year 1924, in fact, initiated an upward spiral in liquor violence
(most notoriously in Chicago, where the murder of Dion
O’Banion precipitated Al Capone’s “Beer War”).

By 1924, then, prohibitionists had begun tocast about rather
desperately for an example of a major city where prohibition
was working. In California they chose Los Angeles, because if
there was any city in the country where prohibition should have
been a success, that city was Los Angeles. Los Angeles, after all,
had been largely populated by “sober, Protestant, native Ameri-
cans of modest means’’ from the Midwest and South — precisely
the sort who would be most sympathetic to prohibition.3

Before the 1920s, persons coming to Los Angeles had been
attracted by theclimate and the agricultural opportunities (or at
least the agricultural opportunities the Chamber of Commerce
said were to be found in southern California.) Though southern
California turned out to be less well-suited for agriculture than
advertised, these new arrivals through hard work and luck were
able to fulfill, to a remarkable degree, the Chamber’s promise of
an agricultural Garden of Eden. Los Angeles County became one
of the most agriculturally productive counties in the country.
Between 1890 and 1920, these new residents with their similar
backrounds created in Los Angeles a significant degree of social
consensus and cohesiveness. The politics were generally *“‘good
government’’ and anti-union, the main occupation agricultural,
the religion Protestant, and the drinking habits moderate todry.

52



Historical Society of Southern California

have provided for prohibition at the local level. In fact, never
in its history did Los Angeles vote for total prohibition on a city
level.

The Harris bill, which provided for prohibiton enforcement
on the state level, was put before California voters in 1920 and
defeated. A second state prohibition enforcement bill, the
Wright bill, was put before the voters in 1922 and passed. An
attempt to repeal the Wright law in 1926 failed. The fact that
Los Angeles voted for the Wright bill in 1922 (with 143,000 “yes”
votes and 84,000 “no” votes),!! and against the repeal in 1926
(with 214,00 “yes”’votes and 146,000 “no” votes) was cited by
the California Liberator, the Anti-Saloon League paper, as
evidence that Los Angeles was a “dry” town.?? This is a
somewhat dubious conclusion. Certainly Los Angeles’ vote was
“drier” than San Francisco’s but the fact that 70,000 more
voters preferred keeping the Wright law to eliminating it (out of
a population of 1,300,000)!3 is hardly compelling evidence of
overwhelming enthusiasm for prohibition in Los Angeles.

That California was one of the wettest states in the Union
has never been denied by anyone. The Los Angeles Examiner,
for instance, estimated that $50,000,000 worth of liquor had
been smuggled into California from British Columbia during
1924, and believed that his estimate was conservative since the
figure quoted was retail price in Canada and did not reflect the
rumrunners’ markup.* The 3 March 1924 Times also produced
a very gloomy story (“Prohibition Map Shows No Enforcement
Progress’) which showed California to be among the wettest
states in the nation with only a 15 percent enforcement rate.

Only a week before the Times had run an editorial based on
another map which showed prohibition enforcement on a city
level. According to this map, San Francisco was supposedly ““85
per cent wet”’ and Los Angeles was ‘“30 per cent wet.” This, said
the Times, made Los Angeles “the driest city of its population in
the country.”15 The Times, then, seemed to be willing to admit
that California was over-whelmingly wet, while assigning
minimum responsibility for that wetness to Los Angeles, the
state’s largest city.

Yet alook at the liquor situation in Los Angeles in 1924 raises
serious doubts as to Los Angeles’ supposed “dryness.” For
instance, Los Angeles police judge Caryl M. Sheldon claimed to
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Los Angeles Prohibition, 1924

of France.?” This despite the fact that Los Angeles policemen
had made nearly 104,000 arrests of all types in 1923 — more
than any other city in the country except for New York,
Chicago, and Philadelphia.38

Vollmer believed that the police department was having
trouble coping with crime in Los Angeles because police pay was
too poor to attract quality applicants ($140 a month), and
because both the quality and quantity of police facilities were
inadequate: “Los Angeles has four small police stations and a
garbage can — the garbage can being that disgraceful affair on
First Street. San Francisco, with an area and population much
smaller, has eighteen stations, any one of which is better than
our best.””® Vollmer requested and got voter approval for a bond
issue which added eleven new police stations and increased the
police force from 2,000 to 2,500 men.* When Vollmer announced
that he would be returning to Berkeley in the fall, not all Los
Angeles residents were sad to see him go. As Vollmer’s
departure date grew nearer, signs began to appear around town
which read, “The First of September will be the Last of
August.”4!

One law enforcement official which the prohibition-minded
Los Angeles Times hoped would be leaving in 1924 was Los
Angeles County District Attorney Asa Keyes. The Times was
backing Los Angeles police judge Caryl M. Sheldon over Keyes
in the election that year because the Times believed Keyes was
soft on bootleggers. During the campaign, Sheldon contrasted
his high conviction rate of liquor cases in the city with the
situation in the county, where 58.5 percent of those accused of
bootlegging were let off — mainly on the grounds of insufficient
evidence. This low conviction rate, plus the fact that Keyes
hadn’t vigorously promoted abatement proceedings against
bootleggers, had, according to Sheldon, led to a flight of liquor
violators from the city to the county.4?

The Times not only saw the election as a test of the county’s
resolve towards prohibition enforcement, but also as a test of
viability of the U.S. Constitution itself. The Times called it a
“situation fraught with peril” when the “flouting of one law is
leading is to the flouting of other laws.” Indeed, the Times
hinted darkly that “the rocks are ahead” should Keyes be re-
elected.*
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History of Skid Row Series, Paper 1

DONALD R. SPIVACK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CRA)September 15, 1998 CRA's role in
the history and development of Skid Row Los Angeles.

(It is interesting to be part of this project. | think it will be very exciting to assemble everybody's
different perspectives on the development of what we call the "Central City East" area of downtown Los
Angeles. Let me start with a brief history of the evolution of the area.) Th